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CHAIRPERSON'S MESSAGE FOR 31ST ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
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Respected Shareholders,

It is my pleasure to welcome you all to this 31st annual
general meeting of National Life Insurance Company
Limited. | consider it an honour to place before you the

31st Annual Report of the Company.

In this fiscal year the overall insurance sector in Nepal has
grown considerably, resulting in a gross insurance premium
collectionofapproximatelyNRs.51 billion.Inspite of numerous
challenges, Fiscal Year 2074/75 has been a successful one for
the Company due to the capable leadership of the board
of directors, diligence and team effort of the management
and our agent’s tireless contribution. The first premium
collection of the company has grown from NRs.192.94 Crore

in the previous year to NRs.232.38 Crore in the year under
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review while the total premium collection of the company
has grown from NRs.506.01 crores to NRs.644.76 crores. The
life insurance fund of the company in the previous year was
NRs.17.29 billion which has grown by 24.16% and reached
NRS.21.47 billion. Similarly, the total investment portfolio
in the previous year was NRs.16.96 billion which grew by
23.54% to reach NRs.20.95 billion. Hence, all major indicators

of the company are good and satisfactory.

In our opinion, the main factor contributing to a profitable
lifeinsurance businessis the return that Fund at the disposal
of the Company generates and therefore the performance
of its investment portfolio is crucial for overall performance
of the Company. Viewed from this perspective, the
Company is in good shape. In the financial year 2074/75
the company’s income from investment grew by 68%
from NRs.108 crores in the previous year to NRs.176 crores
in the year under review and company’s rate of return on
investment has reached 9.56%. This is a matter of great
satisfaction and it has created a beneficial situation for all
stakeholders of the company. Also, as the portion of long
term investment is considerably higher, it would greatly
contribute to stabilize and sustain business operations in
future. The company has transferred an amount of NRs.25
crores from the Life insurance fund as profits as per the
Actuarial Valuation of EY. 2074/75. Also the bonus rate
to all profit sharing polices have been increased by two
points. We believe that this is going to have a positive
impact on the company’s business. Regulatory Authority
Beema Samiti has issued a new Investment Guidelines
to further diversify the investment sector and we believe
that this is going to help the insurance sector to grow even
more. Based on those guidelines, we are pleased to inform
that the process of constructing its own building in some

branch offices have already been initiated.



l T ATEH AT AT [Aide

aiftfs ufdacger 2008/0bY

q0

FOA AT faR T fedEd giatgEr
YT AT T Web Based Comprehensive Integrated
Software @] T Afed® TARMT B | T8 T
sTEEe (IR T T qEdr § S gen
IT RIS HEAT gl g | Ueheselrs
AFNT T T AAHRAHT AT A6
TAATHT TS TATH FREHT B, | HFIATA ATTHAT
TATAFIIH] AT AT [GURT G T ATHEAT TUHT
30% FeT AIfeH FETeAd W YOI AT AfTeRar
AMAH Y&F TRUHT & | ARG FTeThesdrd
Afqepdieedrs AT AAIG  FATSTAR AT
fadte arferves THa F=rer TRTE g | T8I
FFIAT FEST BT ANBUH] THIT (97 qTEEe
R T THAT TR P ¥ AT aUHr B
AT A9 F.R,04,39,% 3,930 HThA TRUH 7 |

ATHITSTF AT IcadT 9i sy e fe s
B | [aq a9 FFIATT dlel AR Heed @
forfay FEmevTHT FEATT TR B AY FEAI
9% Teh] faaw a¥(ehl @TNT aATfefebt fTer Freia
FA Y ST AARTATS HET 10 FF AR
A YSTT TRET G | AT FTEHE AEET qY
g9 faear IR d e g | AtHer a9 wEIEe
qTeT MTSAeTS THT FedTT FUeTed TRITHT o3 |

T FTIROT FATAT HFIAI =] qUH TATRTETS

BT FIAH ekl =[ehT ISl %.3,00,9% ¥0 Y3 /-
HT 9 (ATE) TG G AT A Y (TF
TIHAT 1) FIALTT A A T Al A TR

ATTRT BT TATSTART ATHT &.3% 4945 /%S TS

The company is making necessary investment in technology
and the company is in the final stages of implementing
a new Web Based Comprehensive Integrated Software
system. Similarly, the company is making efforts to expand
its branches network in order to make insurance services
available at the local level. Efforts are also being made to
ensure diversification in Insurance products so as to suit
all types of prospective clients. The company has majorly
focused on the professionalization of agents and as a result
of the same in the year under review the company conducted
306 training programs in which 5732 agents were trained. The
company has also conducted special training programs by
qualified trainers for enhancing the efficiency of the agents.
Smooth and timely settlement of all claims have always been
our priority and claims totaling to NRs. 2,05,27,42,720 have

been settled in the year under review.

Along with the extension of the business, the company
has been laying special focus on the Corporate Social
Responsibility. In the period under review, the company
has accordingly extended co-operation so as to host a
free health camp additionally, we have provided monthly
scholarship up to 10 classes to 15 deserving but poor girls
students under the Girls Education Scheme launched by
the Company. This programme will be further extended
in the future. The company has also provided relief

materials to the flood victims in the year under review.

Itis my pleasure to inform you that the company’s board of
directors have proposed 12% (Twelve) cash dividend and
2.5% (Two point Five) bonus shares out of the profits of the
currentfinancial year on the paid up capital of the company
of NRs.3,00,74,40,535. We are also pleased to inform our

valued shareholders that the board has also proposed
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cash dividend of NRs. 39,57,158.59 for the purpose of tax
to be paid on the bonus shares. We sincerely hope that the
resolution required for the same shall be passed by the

shareholders in this annual general meeting.

| would like to take this opportunity to thank and
show gratitude to the Government of Nepal, Finance
Ministry, Beema Samiti, Office of Company Registrar,
Nepal Securities Board, Nepal Stock Exchange Ltd.,
C.D.S. Clearing Ltd. as well as other government offices
for their support. | would also like to thank the board of
directors for their continuous support and suggestions.
| would further like to thank the management team,
employees and the network of agents for their hard work,
dedication and commitment. | would also like to show
my gratitude to all our customers, valued shareholders

and stakeholders for believing in us and supporting us.

Thankyouforyour participation and profound suggestions.

Prema Rajya Laxmi Singh

Chairperson
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DIRECTOR'S REPORT FORTHE F.Y. 2074/75 PRESENTED BY CHAIRPERSON MRS.
PREMA RAJYA LAXMI SINGH ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, IN 31ST
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF NATIONAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LTD.
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Respected Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors, | would like to welcome
all the shareholders, representatives of various regulatory
authorities, statutory auditor, officials of the Company and
everyone present in this august gathering of National life
Insurance Company Ltd’s 31st Annual General Meeting.
We are pleased to present to you the audited Balancesheet,
Profit and Loss Account as well as the Annual Report of the
Company. We are very much hopeful that the presented
reports of the company which include all necessary details
as mandated by section 109 of the Company’s Act 2063

shall be passed by this meeting after due deliberations.

1. Overview of the Business of the Past Year:

The company in the previous fiscal year had collected
a gross premium of NRs.5,06,01,28261 which has
increased by 27.42% in this fiscal year and has reached
NRs.6,44,76,35,019.Inthe currentfiscalyearanetadditional
sum of NRs.4,17,90,56,020 has been transferred to the life
insurance fund which as compared to the previous fiscal
year has increased by 24.16% and hence as such the Life
Insurance Fund has reached a sum of NRs.21,47,24,69,258
at the fiscal year closing. In the fiscal year under review, an
additional sum of NRs.16,96,14,37,623 had been invested
as a result the investment portfolio has increased by

23.54% and reached a sum of NRs.20,95,44,78,152.
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Current Year Previous Year
Life Insurance Premium (2074/075 BS) (2073/074 BS
(2017/2018 AD) (2016/2017 AD)
First Insurance Premium 2,323,803,522.00 | 1,929,478,208.00
Renewal Insurance Premium 4,123,831,497.00 | 3,130,650,053.00
6,447,635,019.00 | 5,060,128,261.00
Deduction: Re-insurance premium (268,454,262.00) | (234,787,394.00)
Net Premium 6,179,180,757.00 | 4,825,340,867.00
Re-insurance Commission 27,077,582.00 23,815,046.00
Late Fee 33,930,806.00 36,555,304.00
Investment Income 1,822,226,097.00 | 1,135,739,593.00
Total Income (A) 8,062,415,242.00 | 6,021,450,810.00
Payment of Claim (Net) 2,074,853,976.00 | 1,636,527,616.00
Agent Commission Payment 608,796,242.00 454,928,368.00
Service Charge to the Insurance Board 61,791,808.00 48,253,409.00
Medical fee 5,170,336.00 4,541,994.00
Management Expenses 544,597,158.00 423,442,793.00
ot regenpomen. | 1517200 | 2089175200
Total Expenses (B) 3,476,367,242.00 | 2,776,612,000.00
Saving (A-B) 4,586,048,000.00 | 3,244,838,810.00
Provision for income tax (156,932,999.00) (75,175,367.00)
Net Saving 4,429 115,001.00 | 3,169,663,443.00
Ezﬁ:f profitfrom theactuary's |51 10 98100 | 196,265,949.00
ey | amem | 2

Some Company Related Aspects:

aftrerat qifew ¥ gfa faera

FEAATR] AT AAIEANA g AT O
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AT ATTHAT LT [SUHI G T AT, R09% /09y AT
STEAT 30% FQT dTrd e T Y \93R AfTeRarars
AMAH T&TH T G T 3,349 T AfHbdTes Icodad
TRUH G | ATFdiesdrs (a9 IRTeHeede a9
THIAT AT ATAHBT Gl TR B | AT
ATARAT TEATT HIEHH ATATSAT TRTH |

Training and career development of the Agency:
The company has been focusing in providing specialized
training to its agent as before realizing the crucial role of the
network of standard professional agents so as to enhance
the insurance business of the company and accordingly
provided training to the 5,732 agents by conducting total
306 trainings in the fiscal year 2074/075 BS (2017/2018
AD) and has produced 3,351 new agents. The company
has also called expert trainers from various sectors to train
the agents from time to time and has conducted a national
level agent’s felicitation program to create a competitive

atmosphere among the agency force.
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Claim Payment:

In the period under review the company has settled 932
death claims. The company has been successful in meeting
its liability of paying maturity benefits to the policies issued
in the past has in the current fiscal year and has paid NRs.
2,05,27,42,720 as death claim, anticipated maturity claim,
surrender claim etc. The company has delegated necessary
authority to its branches and technology has been used to
make the claim payment process simplified and accessible

to all policyholders.

Information Technology:

The company has given due importance to the continuous
development of its information technology being used. In
an effort to provide additional professional services to the
policy holders the company is in the process of developing
and implementing updated technology and launching
comprehensive integrated software is now in the final
phase. We believe that the new integrated system will not
only provide swift service to the policyholders but will also
have a positive impact on the business of the company. The
company, as it hasin the past, will, in future also, continuously

invest in the best available information technology.

2. Impacts of National and International
Events in the Business of the Company:

As per the report of the International Monetary Fund, the
world’s economy grew by 3.9% in 2018 as compared to
3.8% in 2017. Due to the globalization of investment and
business in 2017, the growth rate of the world’s economy

reached its highest point after 2011.

In the period under review, Nepal government’s revenue
grew by 19.2% to reach NRs.726.08 billion. Likewise

the gross commodities export grew by 11.1% to reach
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NRs.81.19 billion while the import grew by 25.5% to Rs.
1,242.83 billion. In the previous fiscal year the current
account deficit was NRs.10.13 billion which in the
current fiscal year due to massive expansion has reached
NRs.245.22 billion.

In the period under review the yearly average consumer
inflation rate was confined to 4.2%. In the previous
financial year the same was 4.5%. The yearly average
consumer inflation rate of the period under review is the

lowest since financial year 2061/62.

In the period under review the remittance inflow grew by
8.6% to NRs.75.5 billion whereas in the previous year the

inflow had grown by 4.6%.

As for the national scenario, the national elections were
successfully conducted, a three tier government was
formed and the budgets have also been allocated and
are being employed in the development works which has
created a positive environment for economic growth. In the
current fiscal year due to favorable climatic rains, energy
import simplification, increase in tourist arrivals the nation’s
economy is moving in a positive direction. As a result of the
same, the government has set a high economic growth rate
target of 8%. We believe that as the economy expands, it will

help the insurance business grow as well.

3. Achievement in the current fiscal year and
works to be accomplished in the future :

We are pleased to inform you that, in the financial year
2075/76 the company has collected NRs.802.64 crores of
gross insurance premium which is an increment of 24.48%

as compared to financial year 2074/75.
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The company has collected gross insurance premium of
NRs.136.27 crores in the first two months, till Bhadra of
the financial year 2076/77.The high increment in the gross
insurance premium and investment income in the financial
year 2075/76 has remarkably helped in increasing the life

insurance fund.

The company has made good progress in the actuarial
valuation of the period under review and as a result the
company has been able to increase the bonus rate by two
points in all categories of policies with profit for the policy
holders. We believe that the increment in the bonus rate

is going to have a positive impact on the business of the

company.
Product Term (Yrs) 2074/75
5to14 63
15t019 63
Endowment

20t0 25 64

26 & Above 82

5t014 62

Anticipated Endowment 15t019 63
20t0 25 63

The company is planning to expand additional branches
all over the country, making additional investments in the
agent’s network, information technology as well as new

insurance products in the near future.

4. Industrial relation of the company:

The company has maintained meaningful and appropriate,
internal as well as external mutually beneficial industrial
relations based on professionalism and transparency with
all stakeholders. We hope that the relations blossom and

expand even more in the future.
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5. Changes in the Board of directors and
reasons for the change:

After the 30th Annual general meeting of the company
Rastriya Banijya Bank has nominated Deputy Chief executive
Officer of the Bank Shri Kabi Raj Adhikari in place of it's
former Deputy Chief Executive officer Shri. Sushil Shrestha
in the position of director vide it’s letter dated 2076/03/06.

We warmly welcome the new incoming director and also
thank the outgoing director for his contributions in the

progress of the company.

6. Key factors affecting business:

The key factors that can impact the business of the

company are as under:

a) Ahighinflation rate.

b) Lack of long term investment opportunities.

¢) The volatile capital market, liquidity problems and it
resulting in volatile interest rates.

d) Therisk arising from the increased competition.

e) Challenge arising from the potential attrition of
qualified and capable employees.

f)  Potential natural calamities.

The company has adopted appropriate strategies for
business expansion, keeping these factors in view.
Weare confident that theinsurance business will expand further

as the economy of the country is gaining further momentum.

7. Response of the Board of directors on the
qualifications in audit report, if any:

The financial statements of the company are prepared in
accordance with the framework and policies laid down by
the Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) and the
regulatory body, Shri Beema Samiti. We are pleased to note

that there are no qualifications in the audit report.
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8. Proposed Amount for Dividend Distribution:

We are pleased to state that the company’s board of
directors have proposed 12% (Twelve) cash dividend and
2.5%( two point five) bonus shares out of the profits of the
current financial year on the paid up capital of the company
of NRs.3,00,74,40,535. We are also pleased to inform our
valued shareholders that the board has also proposed
cash dividend of NRs. 39,57,158.59 for the purpose of tax
to be paid on the bonus shares. We sincerely hope that the
resolution required for the same shall be passed by the

shareholders in the upcoming annual general meeting.

9. Details of shares forfeited: None

10. Business progress of the company and its
subsidiary company in the fiscal year, main
transactions and any important changes seen in the
transaction of the company during that time period:
The financial statements of the company for the financial
year 2074/75 are attached herewith.

The company’s associate company NLG insurance company’s
business has been satisfactory. The company’s business has

increased satisfactorily and no major changes have taken place.

11. Information provided by the Company's primary
Shareholder to the Company: None

12. If any information has been provided regarding
any personal interest of any of the company’s directors
or their close relatives in any contractual agreements

of the company during the past financial year: None

13. If the company has repurchased its own shares as
such, the reason for such repurchase, the number of
such shares, the face value and the amount paid by

the company for repurchasing such shares: None
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14. Detailed report of the internal control system,

if any:

Thelnternal control system of the company has been effective
as the Board of directors have formed the Audit Committee
and other committees in accordance with the Good
Governance Directives issued by Beema Samiti, Company’s
Act 2063 and other prevailing provisions. In addition to
this, internal control system has been made effective by
consulting external experts as well. A Compliance Officer
has been appointed to ensure that necessary compliance
has been effected. The company has prepared and
implemented various manuals, as per the requirement for
this purpose. Technology has also contributed in the making
the internal control system more effective. The company
also has its own internal control department headed by a

qualified and competent employee.

15. Details of total management expenses of the
past financial year:

The details of the management expenses of the financial

year 2074/75 are attached herewith.

Management expenses F.Y.2074/075BS | F.Y.2073/074 BS

(2017/2018 AD) | (2016/2017 AD)
Staff expenses 207,004,639 168,283,155
Agency related other expenses 2490,068,235 168,003,360
Other offices related expenses 149,035,079 134,205,477
Total Management Expenses 605,107,953 470,491,992

FHATT G 0,90,0% §3% 9%,53,53,944
fTFar w=T @ R¥,20%5,334 1%,50,03,3%0
I AT YT @ | 9¥,%0,34,09% 93,%3,0Y, %98
ERRCERSIRE g %0,49,09R43 ¥9,0%,R9,2%%
FHIATHT FHARESATS ATHITHE TR HE T&T

T FHHAT FHART G Fel g TTH B, | ATl
A @ AT TGl ATARHAT F@H TTH 2 |

FFEIAG] FILATT @9 Ieqfad ¥ AAAd el
aWE T | JFH faeqa fgerer fafqa feerorer
HAG= © AT [GZTH B |

Theemployee'sexpenseshaveincreasedasaresultof providing
competitive remuneration package to the employees of the
company. The other agency expenses have increased on the

basis of increase in the business of the company.

The company’s management expenses are balanced and

consistent.

B¢
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16. Amounts receivable from the directors, Chief

Executive Officer and the primary shareholders: None

17. Details of the members of the audit committee,
the remuneration and allowances provided to them,
details of the work done by the committee and the

suggestions given by the audit committee if any:

In the period under review the following were the
members of the board in the audit committee:

1
2
3
4

Shri Kuldeep Sharan Singh (Director) Co-ordinator

Shri Lilamani Neupane (Director) Member

Shri Maheshwor Prakash Shrestha (Director) Member

= = = =

Shri Pratap Man Shrestha (Assistant General Manager) Member

Shri Neupane resigned from the post of director vide his
letter dated 2074/09/11 and in his place Mr. Maheshwor
Prakash Shrestha was nominated as a member of the audit

committee on 18/02/2075.

In the financial year 2074/75 there were 10 meetings
of the audit committee and NRs.1,90,000 was paid as
meeting allowance to the members of the committee. The
company is providing a meeting allowance of NRs. 10,000
per meeting to the members of the audit committee. No
allowance has been given to the employee who is also a

member of the audit committee.

The audit committee has discussed and studied the
internal control system, audit report, various directives as
well as other related subjects and implemented necessary

changes after the approval of the board of directors.
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18. Remuneration, allowances and facilities provided
to the directors, Chief Executive and Office Bearers:

In the financial year 2074/75 the company has paid NRs.
18,44,000 as meeting allowance (including allowances of
sub-committees) to the members of the board. Apart from
this no other facilities have been provided to the directors.
The salary, allowances and other facilities provided to the

Chief Executive Officer is as under:

Gross salary and allowances NRs.75,89,000
Employee Bonus (As per Bonus Act) NRs.13,41,708
Total NRs.89,30,708

Apart from the amounts mentioned above the company has
provided provident fund of NRs.3,18,000 and accumulated
leave encashment of NRs.1,65,000 to the Chief Executive

Officer as per the company’s employee manual.

The Deputy General Manager, Assistant General Manager
and Managers in total have been provided salary and

allowances of NRs.97,57,945.
19. Dividends payable/outstanding:
As at the closing of the financial year 2074/75 the dividend

payable by the company stands at NRs.99,26,545.

20. Details of the assets purchased by the company as

per section 141 of the company’s act: None

21. Details of transactions with associated company:

None

22, Any other details to be provided as per the

Company’s Act 2063 and other prevailing laws: None

Rel
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Vote of thanks

We would like to take this opportunity to express our
gratitude to our regulatory authority Shri Beema Samiti,
Nepal Government’s Ministry of Finance, Shri Nepal Rastra
Bank and other related organizations for their guidance

and support.

We would also like to thank all our policyholders, agents,
shareholders and well-wishers for the support they have
provided for the overall progress of the company. We appreciate
the integrity, diligence and hard work of the company’s

employees and expect the same support in the future as well.

Lastly, we would like to thank all our valued shareholders
who have taken a deep interest in the operation of the
company and are present today. Your participation has
encouraged us and we firmly believe that the company will

benefit from your profound suggestions.

Date: 10/11/2019

On behalf of the board of directors,

Prema Rajya Laxmi Singh

Chairperson Director

Maheshwor P. Shrestha
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Charered Apzountants

Independent auditor's report to the shareholders of Mational Life [nsurmance
Company Limtad

We have audited tha accompanying financial statements ol Mational Lifa Insurance Company
Limited, which comprise the statement of financzal position a3 al 21 Ashadh 2075, the staterent of
profit or loss, slaterment ol other comprehensive incocme, stalement of changes in equity and
slalarment of casty Towes for he yoar then ended, and a summany af sighificant accounting policias
and other expanalony infermation.

Management's responsibillty for the financial stalemeants

Managemert 1= responsible for the preparaticn and fair presentation of hese financial stalements in
aceardanca with Mepal Fimarcial Repoerire Slandards, and for such internal contrd as
management delemines i3 necessary o enable the preparation of consclidated finansial
stalements that are free from matgenal misstatenent, whether dug to frawd or emar.

Audter's reapongl bty

Cur responsibility is {0 express an apinicn on these financial statements based on our audit, We
conducted our audit in accordance with Mepal Standards an Auditing. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical reguicements and plan and perform the audit to cbtan reasonabls
assurancy atut whathar the financial statemerts are free from material misstalemeant

An auddt invelves performing procedures to cbtain awdit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financlal statermants. Tha procedures selacted depand an tha auditor's judgment,
induding Ihe esgessmert of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due ta fraud or emor, In meking those rsk assesaments, the auditor considera internal control
relevant 1o lhe entity's preparation and far presentalion of the consglidatad financial statements in
arder te deslgn audd presadures that are approproate in the cirtumstances, bul ned for the purposs
of expressing an apinicn on the eflectiveness of the entity's internal control An audit also includes
eva:uating the appraprateness of accounting policies used and the reaspnableness of accourting
estimales mada by management, as wall as svalualing Ihe cverall presentalion al the financial
statemeants

Wie kel ipva that the audit evidence we have obiained is sufficient snd appropriate to provide a basgis

for gur audit openion. 1
@
i T.,:"‘i'? -I,e'.l, | Zﬁﬁ/ﬂ

‘S-S'Ur'lh*.‘ e Jwapgal, Kopuradada, Laldgar, Hepal
P.O. By Mo, 3222, Kathemandu, Hepal

Tal +9FF 1 4590828 Wkl wewe1mid 00
Fae +5FF 1 GIS14YF Eraul el e soasn 1 9
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Indepandence
In conducting our audit we followed apprapriate independence regquirements of MNepalese
professional ethical pronouncements.

Opinien

In our opinion, the financial stalements present fairly, in all meteral respects, the financial pasition
of the Company as at 31 Ashadh 2075, and its finangial performance and cash flows for the year
then ended in acoordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Stendards.

Report on matiers regoired under Companies Acl, 2063

1.

Dated; ':'Ellbﬂll'lmz'

Wa have nbigined afl the infarmation and explanatians, which to the best of pur kncwledpe arnd
belief were negessarny for tha purpese of cur awdit;

In fur apnion, the balance sheet, Prait and Loss Acccunt and the Cash Flaw Statement
referred in this repor have been prepared in accgrdance with Companies Act, 2062 and are in
agresrnent with the books of aceount maintained by the company;

In aur opinicn, proper books of account as reguired by prevailing law have been kept by the
cHmpany 5@ far as appears from our examination of such bogks;

In aur opinien, the aforementioned fnangial statements read wgether with ngtes an accounts
annexed herewith, are presented fairly, in all material respects, the financial postion of the
gompany as of 31st, Ashadh 2074, the results of 1ts operatioh and its cash fliows for he year
then ended in accordance with Mepal Ascaunting Standards and comply with Companies Act,
2063

To the best of our informaben and according to explanations given te us and from aur
examination of the bocoks of acoount of the company necessary for the purpese of gur audil, we
have nol come acrgss cases whera Board of Directors or any emplayae al tha company have
acted canlrary to the provigions of law, or committed any musappropnation or caused loss or
damage to the comparny.

Far L3P Associates
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For the Year ended 16th July 2018
Statement of Financial Position

SN | Particulars | Schedule| 2074/75(Rs.)|  2073/74 (Rs.) | 2072/73 (Rs.)
Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 6 250,049,955 270,365,279 278,241,382
Intangible Assets 7 2,661,696 2,271,527 920,417
Investment Properties 8 729,139,173 575,827,669 497,562,248
Financial Investment at Amortised cost 9 19,640,007,943 15,990,988,886 13,252,469,830
Financial Investment at FVTOCI 10 2,335,341,173 2,668,517,530 2,856,992,264
Investment In an Associate 11 322,499,966 221,914,598 136,942,576
Loans and receivables at Amortised cost 12 2,698,133,530 1,870,061,148 1,449,318,033
Other Assets 13 428,439,332 291,686,783 236,142,280
Current Tax Assets 14 345,737,586 270,647,163 242,669,902
Cash and Cash Equivalents 15 666,554,129 522,361,049 296,422,372
Total Assets 27,418,564,483 22,684,641,632 19,247,681,304
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Share Capital 16 1,656,079,588 1,656,079,588 1,324,863,670
Share Premium 17 37,033,520 37,033,520 57,033,520
Retained Earnings 18 804,688,693 377,593,997 337,983,179
Catastrophe Reserve 19 183,311,022 135,887,121 94,971,742
Other Reserves 20 144,898,932 164,643,160 165,153,717
Total Equity 2,826,011,754 2,371,237,385 1,980,005,828
Policy Holders’ Liability
Insurance Contract Liabilities 21 22,899,353,373 18,953,563,799 16,094,687,710
Unrealised Gains Reserve 22 539,077,171 289,673,220 128,640,373
Total Policy Holders' Liability 23,438,430,544  19,243,237,019 16,223,328,083
Liabilities
Financial Liabilities 23 564,392,776 362,639,341 319,533,918
Other Liabilities 24 193,269,666 162,921,833 124,887,904
Deffered Tax laibility 25 339,256,490 477,402,802 540,678,437
Provisions 26 57,203,252 67,203,252 59,247,135
Total liabilities 24,592,552,728 20,313,404,247 17,267,675477
Total equity and liabilities 27,418,564,483 22,684,641,632 19,247,681,304

For L.S.P. Associates
Chartered Accountants

Satish Chandra Lal
Partner

Bharat Basnet
Chief Executive Officer

Prajwol Sayami
Finance Head

Prema Rajya Laxmi Singh
Chairperson

Lt. Gen. Pawan Bahadur
Pande (Retd.)
Director

Rajeev Bikram Shah
Director

Kabiraj Adhikari
Director

Maheshwor Prakash Shrestha
Director

Bhawani Rana
Director

Er. Kuldeep Sharan Singh
Director

R
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Rajeev Bikram Shah
Director

30

For the year ended 16th July 2018

Statement of Profit or Loss

SN | Particulars | Note | 2074/75(Rs) | 2073/74 (Rs)
1.1 Gross premiums 27 6,447,635,019 5,060,128,261
1.2 Premiums ceded to reinsurers 27 (268,454,262) (234,787,394)
Net premiums 6,179,180,757  4,825,340,867
2 Fees and commission income 28 61,008,388 60,370,348
3 Investmentincome 29 1,969,835,631 1,215,426,126
4 Net realised gains and losses 30 33,808 657,274
5 Fair value gains and losses on Investment Property 8 15,331,150 7,826,542
6 Other operating income 31 42,487,920 42,324,098
Total revenue 8,267,877,654 6,151,945,254
7.1 Gross benefits and claims paid 32 2,052,742,720 1,692,123,713
7.2 Claims ceded to reinsurers 32 (173,107,651) (132,813,925)
Net benefits and claims 1,879,635,069 1,559,309,788
8 Change in Insurance contract liabilities 21 4,374,274,929 3,054,379,833
9 Acquisition Related Expenses 33 617,943,860 463,993,532
10 Service Fees 34 61,791,808 48,253,409
11 Administrative expenses 35 616,719,199 462,830,632
12 Depreciation 27,423,122 20,104,999
Total benefits, claims and other expenses 7,577,787,987 5,608,872,192
Operating profit 690,089,667 543,073,062
13 Finance cost 36 8,647,672 26,913,990
Profit before share of associates 681,441,995 516,159,072
14 Share of profit of an associate 11 12,380,400 10,065,996
Profit before tax 693,822,395 526,225,068
15 Tax expense 37 182,540,903 84,591,902
Profit for the year 511,281,492 441,633,166
Profit attributable to equity holders 511,281,492 441,633,166
Earning Per Share
Basic, profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent 39 30.87 35.56
Diluted, profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent 39 17.00 19.75

Prajwol Sayami
Finance Head

Bhawani Rana
Director

Bharat Basnet

Kabiraj Adhikari
Director

Director

Chief Executive Officer

Maheshwor Prakash Shrestha

Prema Rajya Laxmi Singh

Chairperson

Lt. Gen. Pawan Bahadur

Pande (Retd.)
Director

Er. Kuldeep Sharan Singh

Director

For L.S.P. Associates
Chartered Accountants

Satish Chandra Lal

Partner
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For the Year ended 16th July 2018
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income

SN | Particulars | Schedule | 2074/75 (Rs.) | 2073/74 (Rs.)
Profit for the year 511,281,492 441,633,166

Other Comprehensive Income(OCl)

OCl to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on retranslation of foreign operations
Fair value gains/losses on investment property

Net gain on available-for-sale financial assets (583,802,977) (258,457,275)
Income tax relating to items that may be reclassified
Net OCI to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent (583,802,977) (258,457,275)
periods
OCl not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods:
Profit Share from Investment in Associate (23,218,629) (15,687,943)
Acturial Remeasurement gains on defined benefit plan (15,023,978) (7,695,483)
Net OCI not to be reclassified to profit or loss in (38,242,607) (23,383,426)
subsequent periods
Deferred Tax 145,950,744 64,614,319
OCl for the year, net of tax (476,094,839) (217,226,382)
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 35,186,653 224,406,785

Prajwol Sayami Bharat Basnet Prema Rajya Laxmi Singh For L.S.P. Associates

Finance Head Chief Executive Officer Chairperson Chartered Accountants
Satish Chandra Lal
. . A T Partner
Rajeev Bikram Shah Kabiraj Adhikari Lt. Gen. Pawan Bahadur
Director Director Pande (Retd.)
Director
Bhawani Rana Maheshwor Prakash Shrestha Er. Kuldeep Sharan Singh
Director Director Director
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For the year ended 16 July 2018
Cash Flow Statement

SN | Particular 2074/75 | 2073/74
A Cash Flow from Operating Activities
1 Premium income 6,447,635,018.72 5,060,040,744.82
2 Late Fee Income 33,930,805.93 36,555,302.78
3 Re-insurance income = -
4 Re-insurance commission Income 27,077,581.52 23,815,044.10
5 Other direct income - -
6 Claim recovery from Re -insurer 173,107,651.03 132,813,925.10
7 Payment of Reinsurance premium (260,857,032.83) (220,767,594.16)
8 Payment of Re- Insurance Commission = -
9 Payment of Agent Commission (561,270,909.27) (453,631,700.16)
10  Payment of Medical Fees (5,170,336.45) (4,541,994.41)
11 Payment of Death Claims (378,650,187.96) (278,213,564.58)
12 Payment of Maturity Claims (1,185,963,606.04) (1,121,944,029.75)
13 Payment of Anticipated Maturity Claims (157,957,157.75) (89,270,432.21)
14 Payment of Surrender Claims (262,397,245.59) (157,861,708.38)
15  Payment of other claims (67,774,522.43) (44,833,978.30)
16  Payment of Service fee (50,616,417.52) (32,429,115.34)
17 Payment of other direct expenses - -
18  Payment of share related expenses (3,684,718.39) (2,162,264.82)
19  Payment of Management expenses (487,808,526.79) (460,555,814.14)
20  Payment of staff bonus (51,381,710.00) (26,309,594.93)
21 Payment of income taxes (1,000,000.00) (1,000,000.00)
22 (Increase)/Decrease In current Assets (177,904,455.79) (223,293,943.82)
23 Increase/(Decrease) In current Liabilities (29,203,934.04) 184,899,632.57
Net Cash inflow/(outflow) from operating Activities (A) 3,000,110,296.35 2,321,308,914.37
B Cash Flow from Investing Activities
1 (Increase) Decrease In Fixed Assets 12,210,590.24 6,524,992.69
2 (Increase) Decrease In Investment in government Securities = -
3 (Increase) Decrease In Investment in fixed Deposit of Bank and Financial Institution (3,490,000,000.00)  (2,739,500,000.00)
4 (Increase) Decrease in Equity Share Investment (225,999,719.25) (61,195,231.35)
5 (Increase ) Decrease in investment in preference share/ Debenture (160,000,000.00) -
6 (Increase) Decrease in CIT/Mutual Fund units (25,000,000.00) (8,787,310.00)
7 (Increase) Decrease in Loans Against Insurance Policies (822,417,027.40) (464,426,346.78)
8 (Increase) Decrease in other loans and Advances (23,941,511.65) (746,313.98)
9 Interest income received from investment 1,724,812,428.66 1,098,400,253.06
10 Dividend Received
1 Rent Income Received 30,222,574.43 30,222,574.43
12 Interest on Policy holder loan 124,195,448.57 61,569,559.57
13 Otherindirect income
Net Cash inflow/(outflow) from investing Activities (B) (2,855,917,216.40) 2,077,937,822.36)
Cash Flow From Financing Activities - -
1 Amount Receive From Issue of Shares = -
2 (increase) Decrease in Long Term Loans = -
3 Increase/ Decrease in short term loans - -
4 Payment of Interest in Loan & Debenture = -
5 Payment of Dividend : (17,432,417)
Net Cash inflow/(outflow) From Financing Activities (C) - (17,432,417.00)
Net Cash inflow/(outflow) during the year = (A+B+C) 144,193,080 225,938,675
Opening cash and cash equivalents 522,361,049 296,422,372
Closing cash and cash equivalents 666,554,129 522,361,049




o
[(Hds

I

T ATSh e FFIAT

aifti ufddger 2008/00Y

Y8E'LETLLE'T  (089LLS'ST) 6T6'SLY'LYL LL6'YbS'8y LTL'L88'SEL  L66'€6S’'LLE 0CS'E€E0°LE 885'6,0'959°L ¥£0T YpeYsy ISLE Y
0 91eIDOSSY JO aleys 1yold
sanl|iqer
¥¥/'€05'561 Y/'€05'S6 1L 12eJ1U0D) ddueINSU| O} Jajsuel|
(z8€'9TT'L1T) (e8€'9TT'L1T) [DO WOy Idjsuel]
(SSS'ovT'LL) 1dOS woly J3ysuei|
1eak ayy
(LLY'TEY'LL) (LLY'TEY'LL) Buninp pred spuspiaig ysed
Jeak ayy
0 (8L6'SLTLLE) (000'000°02) 8L6'SLT'LEE Bunnp pred spuspiaIg 32035
sbujuie]
0 GE9'8SY'TE  6LE'SLE'OV (r10'VLE'E€L) paulelay wouy pasisjsuel|
awodul
v¥66'8€9°LTV'T  (9TLLEE'PL) 89S'86E'€9L S/T'980'9L TYL'LL6'V6 SYE'9L9'6LL 0TS'€€0LS 0£9'€98VTE’L dAIsuayaidwod |ejo)
0 SWodUl dAISUSYIdW0d JaY10
991'€€9’ LYY 991'€€9’ Liy J1eaf 3y} 104 1y0id
878'S00°086'L (97l LEEL) 895'86£'€91 G/T'9800L  TVLLL6V6 6/1'€86'L€€ 0TS'€€0'LS 0£9'€98'vTE’L €/07 uemesysis| 1y
LEL'98ST8L (9z1L'L1e€'v1L) 895'86£€91 S/T'98091L 0 (985'£95'7) 0000000 0 SIUSWDINSLIWSY SYAN
i dvvyDJedse €/0¢
L69'6LY'L6L'L 0 0 0 rLLL6Y6 59/'05S'0vE 0TS's€0'L€ 0£9'€98'vTE’L uemeiys is| Uo se aduejeq
OAIDSOY
uonezijinb3 EYVVEREN| EYSEINEN| EVVEREN| swniwald
Aunb3 |elog Uy an|ep Jieq Kio1e|nbay sydounseie) | sbujuies pauieiay aieys | |ended aseys sie|ndiyied NS

Alnbs ui sabuey) Jo 1uswalels

/10Z AInr yis| papua 1pak ay} a0

F



o
[([HI S

o

HEIAT
aiftfs ufdacger 2008/0bY

TITAA ATEH e

vSL'LL0'928‘C (6LE'SLY'VE)  9VHb'990'v6 S08°£0€'S8 TTO'LLE'E8L €69'889'v08 0ZS‘€€0'LE 885°6,0°959°L YL0T Ypeysy IsLE 1Y
sanIiger]

GGE'S8Y 8Ty GSE'S8Y 8Ty 10eJ1UO0D) 3dURINSU| 01 JDjsuel|
(6£8'760'9LY) (6€8'760'9LY) [DO Wody Jasuel]
(8€9'£68'8) 1dOS Wouy J9jsuel|

0 1eak ayy buunp pied spuapialiqg ysed
0 1834 ay) bunnp pied spuapiAlqg }2015
0 ¥68'794'0¢  106'€TV LY (S6£'981'v8) sbuiuiez pauielay woiy parajsuel]
9/8'8LS5°T88'C (089°£LS'ST) 6T6'SLY'LYL LL6'vPYS‘8y LZL'L88'SEL 881'5/8'888 0TS‘€€0'LE 885°6,0'959°L awodui aAIsuayaidwod [ejo)
0 awodUl aAIsuayaIdwod 1aYiQ
6v'18T'LLS 6v'18T'LLS 1eak ay3 4oy 1youd
Y8E'LETLLE'T (089°££5'ST) 6C6'GL9'LYL LL6'PPS'8y LT1'/88'SEL L66'€6S'LLE 0CS'e€0’LE  885'6£0959'L €/0zc uemelysist iy

Aunb3 |e10)

EYSELENY
uonezijinbg
uay

9NIDS9Y
an|ep Jieq

dAIDS9Y 9NIDS9Y swnjwaid
sbujules paulelay :

K101e|nBAY aydouseie) aleys B

£1Inba ul sabuey) Jo Juswalels

810Z AInr Y191 papua ipaf 3y} 104




T ATSh e FHT (AHde I

aiftie ufdager 2008/0bY

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended on 16 July 2018

1. Corporate information

National Life Insurance Company Limited (‘the Company’) is a limited liability life insurance company domiciled in Nepal. The
company was registered in Office of the Registrar of companies, Nepal on 2043/02/19 B.S. as National Life and General Insurance
Company Limited and obtained license to operate life and non-life insurance business on 1988/01/08 A.D. from Beema Samiti (the
regulatory authority in Nepal). Later, in compliance with the new legal requirements, the Company handed over non-life business to
a newly incorporated associate in 2005 A.D. and is carrying life insurance business in the name of National Life Insurance Company
Limited since, 2008/06/17 A.D.

The Company is solely engaged in life insurance business offering individual and group plans, mainly conventional savings and
protection and pure protection business. The Company operates throughout Nepal from its corporate office located at Lazimpat,
Kathmandu, Nepal and 99 branches. The registered office is at Lazimpat, Kathmandu, Nepal. The company is listed in Nepal Stock
Exchange and its stock symbol is “NLICL".

The Company does not have any investment in subsidiaries and joint ventures.

2. Basis of Preparation
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS), as
issued by the Nepal Accounting Standards Board (ASB-Nepal).

The financial statements comprise of Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or loss, Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash flow and Notes to Accounts.

The financial statements have been prepared on an historical cost basis, except for financial assets and investment properties that
have been measured at fair value. The carrying values of assets carried at amortized cost, are adjusted to record changes in the fair
values. The financial statements are presented in NPR rounded to the nearest rupee.

The financial statements provide comparative information in respect of the previous period. In addition, the Company presents an
additional statement of financial position at the beginning of the earliest period presented when there is a retrospective application
of an accounting policy, a retrospective restatement, or a reclassification of items in financial statements.

As permitted by NFRS 4 Insurance Contracts, the Company continues to apply the existing accounting policies that were applied
prior to the adoption of NFRS, with certain modifications allowed by the standard subsequent to adoption for its insurance contracts.

The Company has invested in a number of companies. Since, the Company does not control any of investee; these are designated
as financial investments held at fair value. The Company reassesses its control each year, on an ongoing basis.

The Company presents its statement of financial position broadly in order of liquidity. An analysis regarding recovery or settlement
within twelve months after the reporting date (no more than 12 months) and more than 12 months after the reporting date (more
than 12 months) is presented in the respective notes.

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with NFRS; require the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on management's
best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results, ultimately, may differ from those estimates.

The financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company. As there is no subsidiary company, the financial
statements are not consolidated with the financial statements of other company.

Profit or loss and each component of OCl are attributed to the owners of the Company.

X
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2.1 Reporting period and approval of financial statements.
The company has adopted NFRS as prescribed by the Accounting Standard Board from the financial year 2074/75 and following
dates have been considered for the first time adoption:

Financial Statement Nepalese Calendar Gregorian Calendar
Opening Statement of Financial Position 01/04/2073 16/07/2016

Comparative Statement of Financial Position 31/03/2074 15/07/2017

Comparative NFRS Reporting Period 01/04/2073 to 31/03/2074 16/07/2016 to 15/07/2017
First Statement of Financial Position 32/03/2075 16/07/2018

First NFRS Reporting Period 01/04/2074 to 32/03/2075 16/07/2017 to 16/07/2018

The financial statement has been adopted by the board of directors vide their meeting no 417 held on 05.09.2019.

The approved financial statements have been recommended for approval by the shareholders in the 31st Annual General Meeting
of the company.

3. Presentations

3.1 Presentation Currency
The Company operates within the jurisdiction of Nepal. Nepalese Rupees (NPR) is the presentation and functional currency of the
Company. Accordingly, the Financial Statements are prepared and presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR) rounded to nearest rupee.

3.2 Rearrangement and Reclassification
The figures for the year are rearranged, reclassified and/or restated wherever necessary for the purpose of compliance to the NFRS.

3.3 Statement of Financial Position

The Company presents its statement of financial position broadly in order of liquidity. An analysis regarding recovery or settlement
within twelve months after the reporting date (no more than 12 months) and more than 12 months after the reporting date (more
than 12 months) is presented in the respective notes.

3.4 Statement of Profit and Loss
The elements of Income Statement have been prepared using classification ‘by function‘method. The details of revenue, expenses,
gains and/or losses have been disclosed in the relevant notes.

3.5 Statement of Cash Flows

The statement of Cash Flows has been prepared using direct method and the activities have been grouped under three major
categories (Cash flows from operating activities, Cash flows from investing activities and Cash Flows from financing activities) in
accordance with NAS 07.

3.6 Statement of Changes in Equity
The Statements of Changes in Equity has been prepared disclosing changes in each elements of equity.

3.7 Use of Estimates, Assumptions and Judgments

The Company, under NFRS, is required to apply accounting policies to most appropriately suit its circumstances and operating
environment. The company is required to make judgments in respect of items where the choice of specific policy, accounting
estimates or assumption to be followed could materially affect the financial statements. This may later be determined that a
different choice could have been more appropriate.

The accounting policies have been included in the relevant notes for each item of the financial statements along with the effect
and nature of changes, if any.

The NFRS requires the company to make estimates and assumption that will affect the assets, liabilities, disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities, and profit or loss as reported in the financial statements. The company applies estimates in preparing and
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presenting the financial statements and such estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed periodically. The revision to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and are periodically applied.

Disclosure of the accounting estimates have been included in the relevant section of the notes, wherever the estimates have been
applied along with the nature and effect of changes of accounting estimates, if any.

3.7.1 Going Concern

The financial statements are prepared on going concern basis. The Board of the Company is satisfied that the company has the
resources to continue in business for foreseeable future by considering a wide range of information relating to present and future
conditions, including future projection of profitability, cash flows and capital resources.

3.8 Changes in Accounting Policies

The Company has applied several amendments to standards for the first time during the year ended 16/07/2018. The company has
prepared the opening statement of financial position as per NFRS as at 16th July 2016 (the transition date) by recognizing all assets
and liabilities whose recognition is required by NFRS, not recognizing the items of assets or liabilities which are not permitted by
NFRS, by reclassifying items from previous GAAP to NFRS and applying NFRS as measurement of recognized assets and liabilities.

3.9 Reporting Pronouncement

The company has, for preparation of financial statements, adopted the NFRS pronounced by ASB as effective on July 15, 2018. The
NFRS confirm, in all material respect, to the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by International Accounting
Standards Board (ISAB).

3.10 New Standards in issue but not yet effective

For the reporting of financial instruments, NAS 32 Financial Instruments, Presentations, NAS 39 Financial instruments. Recognition
and Measurement and NFRS 7 Financial Instruments-Disclosure have been applied. NFRS 9 has been complied for the classification
of Financial Instruments.

A number of new standards and amendments to the existing standards and interpretation have been issued to IASB after the
pronouncements of NFRS with varying effective dates. Those become applicable when ASB Nepal incorporates within NFRS.

3.11 New Standard and Interpretation not adopted
The following amendments are not mandatory for 2018 and have not been early adopted by the group. The Company is still
currently assessing the detailed impact of these amendments.

3.11.1IFRS 17

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts was issued by IASB on 18 May 2017 and has a mandatory effective date of annual period beginning on
or after 1 January 2022. It supersedes IFRS 4 Insurance Contract. IFRS 17 with corresponding effective date has not been endorsed by
Accounting Standard Board (ASB) of Nepal yet. The management is still assessing the potential impact on its financial statements,
if IFRS 17 applied in future.

3.11.2IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instrument’-Impairment

IFRS 9 Financial Instrument’ was issued by the IASB on July 2014 and effective internationally for the financial beginning on or after
1 January 2018. Accounting Standard Board of Nepal endorsed NFRS 9 Financial Instruments with some exceptions, mainly in the
Impairment. Currently, Incurred Loss Model as specified in NAS 39 is used. The requirement of IFRS 9 is Expected Credit Loss Model.
The management is still assessing the potential impact on its financial statements if Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model is introduced.

3.11.3 IFRS 16 ‘Leases’

IFRS 16'leases’is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.IFRS 16 is the new accounting standard for leases
and will replace IAS 17" Leases” and IFRIC 4 “Determining whether an Agreement contains a Lease. The new standard removes
the distinction between operating or finance lease for lessee accounting, resulting in all leases being treated as finance leases. All
leases will be recognized on the statement of financial position with the optional exception for short term leases with lease term
of less than 12 months and leases of low- value assets (for example mobile phones or laptops). A lessee is required to recognize a
right-of-use assets representing its right to use the underlying leased assets and a lease liability representing its obligation to make
lease payments. The main reason for this change is that this approach will result in a more comparable representation of a lessee’s

20
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assets and liabilities in relation to other companies and together with enhanced disclosure, will provide greater transparency of a
lessee’s financial leverage and capital employed. The standard permits a lessee to choose either a full retrospective or a modified
retrospective transition approach.

IFRS 16 Leases has not yet been adopted by the Accounting Standard Board of Nepal.

3.12 Discounting
Discounting has been applied where assets and liabilities are non-current and the impact of the discounting is material.

3.13 Limitation of NFRS Implementation
Wherever the information is not adequately available, and /or it is impracticable to develop the, such exception to NFRS has been
noted and disclosed in respective sections.

4. Significant accounting policies
4.1.Property and equipment

a) Recognition and Measurement:

Items of property, plant, and equipment should be recognised as assets when it is probable that:

e itis probable that the future economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the entity, and
o the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

An item of property, plant and equipment should initially be recorded at cost. Cost includes all costs necessary to bring the asset
to working condition for its intended use. This would include not only its original purchase price but also costs of site preparation,
delivery and handling, installation, related professional fees for architects and engineers, and the estimated cost of dismantling and
removing the asset and restoring the site.

Property and equipment, including owner-occupied property, is stated at cost, excluding the costs of day-to-day servicing, less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes all costs necessary to bring the asset to working
condition for its intended use. This would include not only its original purchase price but also costs of site preparation, delivery and
handling, installation, related professional fees for architects and engineers, Replacement or major inspection costs are capitalized
when incurred, if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably.

b) Capital Work in Progress :
Assets under construction and cost of assets not put to use are shown as capital work in progress.

¢) Depreciation:

Depreciation is provided on a straight line basis prospectively from 2017/18 using the under mentioned life.
o Buildings- 40 years

o Leasehold improvements - 5 years

o Furniture and Fixtures — 10 years

e Equipment -5 years

o IT Equipment-5 years

e Others- 10 years

o Vehicles - 10 years

The assets' residual values, and useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each financial
year end and adjusted.

Effect of change in Depreciation Method in existing assets:
During the fiscal year 2017/18, the company has changed its method of depreciation from the Written Down Method (WDV) into
Straight Line method based on useful life of the assets.
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d) De-recognition:

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no further future economic benefits are expected from
its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognized.
The gains are not classified as revenue.

4.2. Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets
are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles,
including development costs, are not capitalized and the related expenditure is reflected in statement of profit or loss in the year
in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset
with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern
of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortization period or method,
as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives
is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either individually or at the CGU level. Such
intangibles are not amortized. The useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether
indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is
made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

4.3 Investment Property

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the reporting date. Gains or losses arising from changes in
the fair values of investment properties are included in the statement of profit or loss in the year in which they arise, including the
corresponding tax effect. Fair values are evaluated annually by an accredited external, independent valuator.

Investment properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed of, or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal
of an investment property are recognized in the statement of profit or loss in the year of retirement or disposal.

Transfers are made to (or from) investment property only when there is a change in use. For a transfer from investment property
to owner-occupied property, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair value at the date of change in use. If owner-
occupied property becomes an investment property, the Company accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated
under property and equipment up to the date of change in use.

4.4. Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of
another entity.

4.4.1 Financial assets

a. Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, loans and receivables, held to maturity (HTM) investments, available-for-sale
(AFS) financial assets, as appropriate. Financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of investments not at
FVPL, directly attributable transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

®
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The classification depends on the purpose for which the investments were acquired or originated. Financial assets are classified as
at FVPL where the Company’s documented investment strategy is to manage financial investments on a fair value basis, because
the related liabilities are also managed on this basis. The HTM category is used when the relevant liability (including shareholders’
funds) is passively managed and/or carried at amortized cost. The AFS is carried at fair value through OCI.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell
the asset.

The Company’s financial assets include cash and short-term deposits, trade and other receivables, loans and other receivables.

b. Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
« Financial Investments at FVTPL

+ Loans and receivables at amortized Cost

« Financial Investments at Amortized Cost

« Financial Investment at FVTOCI

4.4.2 Financial Investment at FVTOCI
Financial Investment at FVTOCI includes equity securities. Equity investments classified as Financial Investment at FVTOCI are those
that are neither classified as held for trading nor designated at FVTPL.

After initial measurement, Financial Investment at FVTOCI is subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealized gains or losses
recognized in OCl. Where the insurer holds more than one investment in the same security they are deemed to be disposed of
on a first-in first-out basis. Dividends earned whilst holding AFS investments are recognized in the statement of profit or loss as
‘Investment income’ when the right of the payment has been established. When the asset is derecognized or determined to be
impaired, the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from OCI- fair value Reserve to the statement of profit or loss and removed from
the OCl-fair Value reserve.

The Company evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell its Financial Investment at FVTOCl in the near termis still appropriate.
When, in rare circumstances, the Company is unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets, the Company may
elect to reclassify these financial assets if the management has the ability and intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable
future or until maturity. For a financial asset reclassified out of the Financial Investment at FVTOCI category, the fair value carrying
amount at the date of reclassification becomes its new amortized cost and any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognized in equity is amortized to profit or loss over the remaining life of the investment using the EIR. Any difference between
the new amortized cost and the maturity amount is also amortized over the remaining life of the asset using the EIR. If the asset
is subsequently determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.

The unquoted equity investments are recorded at book value.

4.4.3 Loans and receivables at amortized Cost

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, loans and receivables are measured at amortized cost, using the EIR method, less allowance
for impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fee or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in ‘investment income’ in the statement of profit or loss. Gains and
losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss when the investments are derecognized or impaired, as well as through the
amortization process.

4.4.4 Financial Investments at Amortized Cost

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities are classified as Financial Investments at
Amortized Cost when the Company has the positive intention and ability to hold until maturity. After initial measurement, Financial
Investments at Amortized Cost are measured at amortized cost, using the EIR, less impairment. The EIR amortization is included in
‘investment income’in the statement of profit or loss. Gains and losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss when the
investments are derecognized or impaired, as well as through the amortization process. The premium paid on government bonds
have been amortized equally though out the holding period. The same has been completely amortized as of 16/07/2018.
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4.4.5 De-recognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, when applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is de-recognized when:
+ The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
« The Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a‘pass-through’arrangement; and either:
(a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset or
(b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, and
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset
is recognized to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Company also recognizes an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

4.4.6 Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets
is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that has occurred since the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’) and that loss
event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization and observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

a) Available-for-sale financial investments
For financial investments at FVTOCI, the Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that an
investment or a group of investments is impaired.

In the case of equity investments classified as financial investments at FVTOCI, objective evidence would include a ‘significant
or prolonged’ decline in the fair value of the investment below its cost. ‘Significant’ is evaluated against the original cost of the
investment and ‘prolonged’ against the period in which the fair value has been below its original cost. Where there is evidence
of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognized in the statement of profit or loss — is removed from OCl and recognized
in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity investments are not reversed through profit or loss; increases in
their fair value after impairment are recognized directly in OCI. The determination of what is ‘significant’ or ‘prolonged’ requires
judgment. In making this judgment, the Company evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to which the fair value of
an investment is less than its cost.

b) Financial Investments at amortized cost

For financial Investments carried at amortized cost, the Company first assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Company
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognized are not
included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present value of
the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
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The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the loss is recognized in the statement
of profit or loss. Interest income (recorded as investment income in the statement of profit or loss) continues to be accrued on
the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Loans together with the associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect
of future recovery and all collateral has been realized or has been transferred to the Company. If, in a subsequent year, the amount
of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the
previously recognized impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered,
the recovery is credited to finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

4.5 Investment in an associate
An associate is an entity over which the Company has significant influence and which is neither a subsidiary nor a joint venture.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but it is not control
or joint control over those policies.

The Company’s investment in its associate is accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity method, the investment
in an associate is carried in the statement of financial position at cost plus post-acquisition changes in the Company’s share of
net assets of the associate. Goodwill relating to an associate is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is neither
amortized nor individually tested for impairment.

The statement of profit or loss reflects the share of the results of operations of the associate. Any change in OCI of the investee
is presented as part of the Company’s OCI. In addition, when there has been a change recognized directly in the equity of the
associate, the Company recognizes its share of any changes and discloses this, when applicable, in the statement of changes in
equity. Unrealized gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Company and the associate are eliminated to the
extent of the interest in the associate.

The aggregate of the Company’s share of profit of the associate is shown on the face of the statement of profit or loss. This is profit
attributable to equity holders of the associate and, therefore, is profit after tax and non-controlling interests in the subsidiaries of
the associates.

The financial statements of the associate are prepared for the same reporting period as the Company. Where necessary, adjustments
are made to bring its accounting policies in line with the Company’s accounting policies.

After application of the equity method, the Company determines whether it is necessary to recognize an additional impairment
loss on the Company’s investment in associates. The Company determines at each reporting date, whether there is any objective
evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Company calculates the amount of impairment as
the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognizes the amount in the ‘share of
profit of an associate’in the statement of profit or loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Company measures and recognizes any remaining investment at its fair
value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of significant influence and the fair value of the
remaining investment and proceeds from disposal is recognized in profit or loss.

4.6. Financial liabilities
4.6.1 Recognition and Measurement

a. Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FVPL, loans and borrowings, payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and insurance payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, borrowings and re-insurance payables.
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b. Subsequent measurement
Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as follows:
Financial liabilities at FVPL

Financial liabilities at FVPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as
at FVPL.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at FVPL are designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the
criteria in NFRS 7 are satisfied.

Gains or losses on designated or held for trading liabilities are recognized in fair value gains and losses in the statement of profit
or loss.

4.6.2 Interest bearing loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method.
Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization
process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fee or costs that are an integral part
of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance cost in the statement of profit or loss.

4.6.3 De-recognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition
of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

4.7. Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

4.8. Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments at FVTOCI and investment property at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value
related disclosures for financial instruments and investment property are disclosed and summarized in the following notes:

- Disclosures for significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions Note 5
» Investment properties Note 8
« Financial instruments (including those carried at amortized cost) Note 10

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the
asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

i. Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
ii. In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

¥3
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A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest
and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

4.9. Taxes

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss except to the extent
that they relate to items recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

4.9.1 Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date in Nepal.

Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity or OCl is recognized in equity or OCl and not in the statement of
profit or loss.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations
are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions, where appropriate.

4.9.2 Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

+ When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

+ In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in associates, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except where the
deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax
assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit
will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the asset is realized
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss. Deferred tax items are recognized
in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCl or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

4.9.3 Value Added Tax
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognized including VAT wherever applicable.
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4.10. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and short-term deposits in the statement of financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above,
net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management. Cash and cash
equivalents are carried at amortized cost in the statement of financial position.

4.11. Equity movements

4.11.1 Ordinary share capital

The Company has issued ordinary shares that are classified as equity instruments. As the company has not issued share capital after
adoption of NFRS, incremental external costs that are directly attributable to the issue of these shares are not recognized in equity.

4.11.2 Dividends on ordinary share capital
Dividends on ordinary shares are recognized as a liability and deducted from equity when they are approved by the Company’s
shareholders. Interim dividends are deducted from equity when they are paid.

Dividends for the year that are approved after the reporting date are dealt with as an event after the reporting date.

4.12 Catastrophe Reserves
The company has apportioned 10% of the net profit derived as prescribed by Beema Samiti for the catastrophe reserve as per the
regulatory requirement. Such reserves are not distributable and are kept as a safe guard against catastrophe claims.

4.13 Other Reserves:
The other reserves include OCl-fair value reserve, rent equalization reserve, and regulatory reserve.

OCI- Reserve: This reserve is created through the transfer of fair value gains and losses in the investment carried at FVTOCI.

Rent Equalization Reserve: This reserve is created from the effect of equalization of rent income and expense. This reserve shall be
written off over the period of the lease agreement.

Regulatory reserve: It includes any amount derived as result of NFRS convergence with effect in retained earning computed as per
the instruction of Beema Samiti.

4.14 Unrealized Gains Reserve:

This reserve has been created by transferring 90% of the unrealized gains from investment property and investment in associates. The
reserve shall be utilized to compensate any loss in fair valuation of these assets in future or for bonus equalization to policyholders.
The reserve is a designated reserve and is not available for distribution to shareholders.

4.15. Insurance contract liabilities

Life insurance liabilities are recognized when contracts are entered into and premiums are received. These liabilities are measured
using the gross premium method as prescribed by the Beema Samiti (regulating authority for insurance company in Nepal). The
liability is determined separately for each contract using a prospective calculation by projecting future cash flows on a monthly basis
till the end of term of policy. For each product, the cash flows considered are: premium income, expenses (including commission),
death outgo, maturity outgo and survival outgo (if applicable). The office premium for the base cover, excluding rider premiums
and extra premiums if any, is considered for valuing the liabilities. The contractual benefits under each product have been modeled
in accordance with the product specifications for each plan. For participating products, sum assured and vested bonuses as at the
valuation date is considered as part of the liability. The rider reserves have been computed using the Unearned Premium Reserve
method. Negative reserves, if any, are set to zero at a policy level. As per directives of Beema Samiti, lapsed policies can be revived
at any time irrespective of when the policy had lapsed. In view of the said directives a provision for revival of lapsed policies is
held for all the policies that are lapsed but under which liability may arise. Lapsed policies are valued as enforce and 20% of such
reserves net of premiums receivable and commissions’ payable, is held as the provision. This assumes a revival rate of 20% based
on the revival experience of the Company in the concerned year. Provision is also made towards substandard lives the Company is
exposed to owing to the extra mortality risk. The full amount of extra premium is held as provision. A contingency reserve is held
to cover any unforeseen event and issues. Reinsurance has been incorporated into the valuation models during the year, based on
the reinsurance treaties. Henceforth, reserves net of reinsurance receivables will be used for.
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The liability for life insurance contracts comprises the provision for unexpired risks on term policy and premium deficiency, as well
as for claims outstanding, which includes an estimate of the incurred claims that have not yet been reported to the Company.
Adjustments to the liabilities at each reporting date are recorded in the statement of profit or loss in‘Change in insurance contract
liabilities'

At each reporting date, an assessment is made of whether the recognized life insurance liabilities are adequate by using an existing
liability adequacy test performed in accordance with Nepal GAAP. The liability value is adjusted to the extent that it is insufficient to
meet expected future benefits and expenses.

Aggregation levels and the level of prudence applied in the test are consistent with Nepal GAAP requirements. To the extent that
the test involves discounting of cash flows, the interest rate applied is lower of investment return or 6% (prescribed by Beema
Samiti)

4.16. Financial Libilities

Financial liabilities includes commission payable to agent and payable to reinsurer amongst other financial liabilities. Commission
payable to agents and payable to reinsurer is recognized when premium is received. Payable to reinsurer is shown net of receivable
against claim and commission. Other financial liabilities are recognized when due.

4.18. Provisions

4.18.1 General

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, and it
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Where the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed,
the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating
to a provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of money is
material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

A disclosure for contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may but probably will
not require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood
of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made. Contingent assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually
certain that an inflow of etc.

4.18.2 Onerous contracts

A provision is recognized for onerous contracts in which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract
exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it. The unavoidable costs reflect the least net cost of exiting the
contract, which is the lower of the cost of fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties arising from failure to fulfill it.

4.19. Revenue recognition

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits during the period arising from the course of the ordinary activities of an entity
when those inflows result in increases in equity, other than increases relating to contributions from equity participants. Revenue is
recognized when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity and those benefits can be measured reliably.

4.19.1 Gross premiums
Gross recurring premiums on life insurance contracts are recognized as and when premium is received.

4.19.2 Reinsurance premiums
Gross outward reinsurance premiums on life insurance contracts are recognized as an expense when the policy holder pays the
premium to the company.

Reinsurance premiums and claims on the face of the statement of profit or loss have been presented as negative items within
premiums and net benefits and claims, respectively, because this is consistent with how the business is managed.
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4.19.3 Reinsurance ceded to reinsurance counterparties

The Company cedes insurance risk in the normal course of business exceeding its retention capacity prescribed by Beema samiti for
all of its businesses. Reinsurance assets represent balances due from reinsurance companies. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers
are estimated in a manner consistent with the outstanding claims provision or settled claims associated with the reinsurer’s policies
and are in accordance with the related reinsurance contract.

Reinsurance assets are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date, or more frequently, when an indication of impairment
arises during the reporting period. Impairment occurs when there is objective evidence as a result of an event that occurred after
initial recognition of the reinsurance asset that the Company may not receive all outstanding amounts due under the terms of the
contract and the event has a reliably measurable impact on the amounts that the Company will receive from the reinsurer. The
impairment loss is recorded in the statement of profit or loss.

Gains or losses on buying reinsurance are recognized in the statement of profit or loss immediately at the date of purchase and are
not amortized.

Ceded reinsurance arrangements do not relieve the Company from its obligations to policyholders.

4.19.4 Fees and commission income

Fees and commission are commission on reinsurance ceded and late fee charged to policyholders on delay in premium payment
or revival of lapsed policy. Commission on reinsurance ceded are recognized as income when premium ceded is recognized as
expense. Late fee is recognized as income when received.

4.19.5 Investment income

Interest income is recognized in the statement of profit or loss as it accrues and is calculated by using the EIR method. Fees and
commissions that are an integral part of the effective yield of the financial asset are recognized as an adjustment to the EIR of the
instrument.

Income on interest free loan or loans at concessional to employees are calculated using EIR and taken as income and expensed in
personnel cost.

Investment income also includes dividends when the right to receive payment is established.

4.19.6 Realized gains and losses

Realized gains and losses recorded in the statement of profit or loss include gains and losses on financial assets, properties and
equipment. Gains and losses on the sale of investments are calculated as the difference between net sales proceeds and the original
or amortized cost and are recorded on occurrence of the sale transaction.

4.19.7 Fair value gains and losses on Investment Property

Fair value gains and losses are the difference between the fair value and the book value of the investment property. Only 10% of
the revaluation gains have been booked in the SOPL. The remaining 90% of the gains have been transferred to the unrealized gains
reserve. The fair value of the investment property has been valued by a certified independent valuator.

4.20. Benefits, claims and expenses recognition

a. Gross benefits and claims

Gross benefits and claims for life insurance contracts include the cost of all claims arising during the year, including external claims
handling costs that are directly related to the processing and settlement of claims and policyholder bonuses declared on contracts.
Changes in the gross valuation of insurance contract liabilities are also included. Death claims and surrenders are recorded on the
basis of notifications received. Maturities and annuity payments are recorded when due. Claims also include 15% of outstanding
claims for IBNR (Incurred But Not Reported) as prescribed by Beema Samiti.

b. Reinsurance claims
Reinsurance claims are recognized when the related gross insurance claim is recognized according to the terms of the relevant
contract.
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4.21 Acquisition Related Expenses

Since the Company recognizes premium income on premium receipts basis, no direct and indirect costs incurred during the
financial period arising from the acquiring or renewing of insurance contracts, are deferred. Consequently, all acquisition costs
are recognized as an expense when due. Agent’s commission is recognized as expense when due and Medical expenses, whether
incurred for proposal accepted or rejected, are expensed during the year. Similarly agent training expenses and other expenses
relating to agents are not deferred as future cash flow generation cannot be estimated.

Costs related to reinsurance are not recorded as deferred acquisition cost as the liability to pay the reinsurer arises on receipt of
premium.

4.22 Employee Benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by an entity in exchange for service rendered by employees or for the

termination of employment. The employee benefits are recognized as under:

« Aliability when an employee has provided service in exchange for employee benefits to be paid in the future; and

« An expense when the entity consumes the economic benefit arising from the service provided by an employee in exchange for
employee benefits.

Short-term employee benefits
These are recognized when the employee has rendered the service and are measured at the undiscounted amount of benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for that service to be settled within 12 months, other than termination benefits

Post-employment benefits (other than termination benefits and short-term employee benefits)

The Company has a defined benefit plan for post-employment benefits.

« A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate
entity (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay allemployee benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods. Under NAS 19, when an employee
has rendered service to an entity during a period, the entity recognizes the contribution payable to a defined contribution plan
in exchange for that service as a liability (accrued expense) and as an expense, unless another Standard requires or permits the
inclusion of the contribution in the cost of an asset.

« Adefined benefit plan is any post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. Under NAS 19, an entity uses
an actuarial technique (the projected unit credit method) to estimate the ultimate cost to the entity of the benefits that employees
have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; discounts that benefitin order to determine the present value
of the defined benefit obligation and the current service cost; deducts the fair value of any plan assets from the present value of the
defined benefit obligation; determines the amount of the deficit or surplus; and determines the amount to be recognized in profit
and loss and other comprehensive income in the current period. Those measurements are updated each period.

Other long-term benefits
These are all employee benefits other than short-term employee benefits, post-employment benefits and termination benefits.
Measurement is similar to defined benefit plans.

Termination benefits
Termination benefits are employee benefits provided in exchange for the termination of an employee’s employment. The Company
recognizes a liability and expense for termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates:

« when the entity can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and
« when the entity recognizes costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of NAS 37 and involves the payment of termination
benefits.

4.23 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective assets. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.
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4.24. Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, or contains a lease, is based on the substance of the arrangement at the
inception date and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific
asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset, even if that asset is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Rental income and expenses are recognized as expenditure in the statement of profit or loss on a straight line basis over the lease
term. Contingent rents are recognized as expenditure in the period in which they are incurred.

4.25. Foreign currency translation
The Company’s financial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupee (NPR) which is also the company’s functional currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at functional currency spot rate prevailing at the date the
transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rate of exchange
at the reporting date.

All differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are taken to the statement of profit or loss.

4.26. Product classification

Insurance contracts are those contracts where the Company (the insurer) has accepted significant insurance risk from another party
(the policyholders) by agreeing to compensate the policyholders if a specified uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely
affects the policyholders. As a general guideline, the Company determines whether it has significant insurance risk, by comparing
benefits payable after an insured event with benefits payable if the insured event did not occur.

Once a contract has been classified as an insurance contract, it remains an insurance contract for the remainder of its lifetime, even
if the insurance risk reduces significantly during this period, unless all rights and obligations are extinguished or expire. Accordingly,
contracts without insurance risk but recognized as insurance contracts till F/Y 2017/18 have been treated as insurance contracts.

The company has not opted unbundling of deposit and insurance components.

Insurance contracts are further classified as being either with or without bonus. Bonus is a contractual right to receive, as a
supplement to guaranteed benefits, additional benefits at prescribed rates.

4.27. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and its carrying cost. The recoverable amount
is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or Company’s assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company makes an estimate
of the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of amortization or depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in
prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

4.28 Segment information

The company offers life insurance. Under life insurance the company offers savings, protection products and other long-term
contracts (both with and without insurance risk and with and without bonus. It comprises a wide range of whole life, term assurance.
Revenue is derived primarily from insurance premiums, fees and commission income, investment income and fair value gains and
losses on investments.
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For management purposes, the operating segment is organized into business units based on their products and services and has
five reportable operating segments, as follows:

Endowment : This is a with profit plan that makes provisions for the family of the Life Assured in event of his early death and also
assures a lump sum at a desired age on maturity. It costs moderate premiums, has high liquidity and in savings oriented.This plan
is apt for people of all ages and social groups who wish to protect their families from a financial setback that may occur owing to
their demise.

Anticipated: This scheme provides for specific periodic payments of partial survival benefits during the term of the policy itself so
long as the policy holder is alive. It is therefore suitable to meet specified financial requirements needed for occasions like Brata
bandha, Academic Graduations etc. An important feature of plan is that in the event of death at any time within the policy term,
the death claim comprises full sum assured without deducting any of the survival benefit amounts, which have already been paid.
Itis also with profit plan.

Whole Life: This plan is a combination of Endowment Assurance and Whole Life with profit plan. It provides financial protection
against death throughout the lifetime of the life assured with the provision of payment of a lump sum at the maturity of the policy
to the assured in case of his survival.

Term: Term life insurance, also known as pure life insurance, is life insurance that guarantees payment of a stated death benefit
during a specified term. Once the term expires, the policyholder can renew it for another term, convert the policy to permanent
coverage, or allow the policy to terminate.

Special: Special Term insurance is a modified version of term insurance with added benefits

Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or loss and is measured consistently with profit or loss in the consolidated
financial statements.

No inter-segment transactions occurred in 2016/17 and 2017/18.

5. Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future reporting periods.

5.1 Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were
prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or
circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

5.1.1 Valuation of insurance contract liabilities

The liability for life insurance contracts is either based on current assumptions or on assumptions established at the inception of the
contract, reflecting the best estimate at the time together with a margin for risk and adverse deviation. All contracts are subject to
a liability adequacy test, which reflect management’s best current estimate of future cash flows.

The main assumptions used relate to mortality, investment returns, expenses, and discount rates. The Company bases mortality on
100% of NALM (Nepal Assured Lives Mortality) 2009 Tables based on the observed mortality of Nepalese lives up till September
20009. It is mandatory to use this table under circular of Beema Samiti.

The valuation rate of interest is based on the historical and current returns earned by the Company, as well as the expected outlook
for the future, subject to maximum of 6% as prescribed by Beema Samiti..
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The expense assumptions reflect the projected costs of maintaining and servicing in-force policies and associated overhead
expenses. The current level of expenses is taken as the expense base, and expense inflation of 4% per annum is assumed in the cash
flow projections.

Policy withdrawals (Lapse and surrender rates) are not considered as it is more prudent in absence of persistency study. The
Company is evaluating merits of persistency study and may resort to consider policy withdrawals in future in valuation of insurance
liabilities.

5.1.2 Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the statement of financial position cannot be measured
based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques. The inputs to these models are
taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair
values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and model inputs such as volatility for longer
dated derivatives and discount rates, prepayment rates and default rate assumptions for asset backed securities.

Changes in assumptions relating to these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

5.2 Other disclosures
Other disclosures relating to the Company’s exposure to risks and uncertainties includes:

- Capital management Note 40
+ Insurance and financial risk management and policies Note 41
+ Sensitivity analyses disclosures Note 41.3
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7. Intangibles
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At 1st Shrawan 2072 56,500
Additions during the year 1,147,696
Deduction during the year 0
As at 31 Ashadh 2074 1,204,196
Accumulated Ammortization 0
At 1st Shrawan 2072 45,200
Additions during the year 238,579
As at 31 Ashadh 2073 283,779
Carrying Cost 0
As at 31 Ashadh 2073 920,417

0
At 1st Shrawan 2073 1,204,196
Additions during the year 1,515,895
Deduction during the year 0
As at 31 Ashadh 2074 2,720,091
Accumulated Ammortization 0
At 1st Shrawan 2073 249,879
Additions during the year 198,685
As at 31 Ashadh 2074 448,564
Carrying Cost 0
As at 31 Ashadh 2074 2,271,527
As at 31 Ashadh 2073 954,317

0
At 1st Shrawan 2074 2,720,091
Additions during the year 900,000
Deduction during the year 0
As at 31 Ashadh 2075 3,620,091
Accumulated Ammortization 0
At 1st Shrawan 2074 448,564
Additions during the year 509,831
As at 31 Ashadh 2075 958,395
Carrying Cost 0
As at 31 Ashadh 2075 2,661,696
As at 31 Ashadh 2074 2,271,527

Intangibles comprise of software. The cost of software is amortized in 5 years.
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8. Investment Properties

Opening Balance 575,827,669 497,562,248
2 Reclassification from property and - - 379,071,076
Equipment
Fair Value Gains/Losses 153,311,504 78,265,421 118,491,172
4 Total Investment Property 729,139,173 575,827,669 497,562,248

The investment properties are in the form of land at Kathmandu, Pokhara, Biratnagar, Birgunj and Nepalgunj. There are no
restrictions on the realisability of investment properties or proceeds of disposal.

Description of valuation techniques used and key inputs to valuation of investment properties:

Name of Valuator: Prabin Bajracharya Lic No.:"A" 3884 Civil Engineer

VALUATION THEORY AND METHODOLOGY
Following method have been adopted for computing the value of the properties.
Valuation of Land

Comparative method
In this method, the sales from transaction of vicinity of land properties are studied and then a fair price for the land is fixed bassoon on the
collective data.

The physical nature such as length, width, situation etc. is required to consider in detail before fixing up the price.

Extensive inquiry is carried by the associates with the local residents familiar with the property transactions around the locality to find out the
current buying and selling price of the land.

The rate of the land adopted by the government tax department for the particular locality is also noted. Due weight age is given to all the
information and most probable Current land rate is fixed and adopted. Seventy (70%)-thirty 30%) approach is considered in the ratio for
commercial rate and government rate.

The main factors we have considered for the land valuation are accessibility, centrality location, business relevance and future scope of the land.

Development method

When a property to be valued is fairly big and no data available from similar land but sales transaction of small plots are available, on the basis
we may adopt the method of development. In this method, the properties which are in the undeveloped stage or partly developed and partly
undeveloped stage, the total land is divided into number of plots after providing for roads, parks etc. In such cases, the probable selling price of
divided plots, the area required for roads, parks etc and other expenses for development should be known in such a way that the similar facilities
and conditions are maintained to match with the available surrounding units for compensation.

Details of Fair Value:

Biratnagar 71,206,800 78,409,800 85,612,800
Birgunj 20,045,000 23,370,000 25,863,750
Nepalgunj 36,616,475 40,095,475 45,313,975
Pokhara 10,053,973 12,152,394 14,573,648
Thamel 359,640,000 421,800,000 557,775,000
Total 497,562,248 575,827,669 729,139,173

Yy



9. Financial Investment at Amortized Cost

SN [Particulars 2074/75 (Rs.)
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2073/74 (Rs.)

2072/73 (Rs.)

1 Government Securities 225,130,943 226,111,886 227,092,830
2 Fixed Deposits in Commercial Bank 18,385,000,000 14,885,000,000 12,137,500,000
3 Fixed Deposits in Development Bank 320,000,000 350,000,000 333,000,000
4 Fixed Deposits in Finance Company 20,000,000 0 25,000,000
5 Debentures and bonds 689,877,000 529,877,000 529,877,000

Total 19,640,007,943 15,990,988,886 13,252,469,830

10. Financial Investment at FVTOCI

1 Investmentin shares 2,237,616,033 2,595,792,390 2,793,054,434
Book Value 901,228,717 675,602,097 614,406,866
Transfer to OCI 1,336,387,316 1,920,190,293 2,178,647,568

2 Mutual Funds 97,725,140 72,725,140 63,937,830
Total 2,335,341,173 2,668,517,530 2,856,992,264

Available-for-sale financial assets consists of certain quoted and unquoted equities and debt securities. Quoted securities are
valued at market price at the end of the financial year. Unquoted shares are valued at cost. Debt securities maturing within 1 year

is 2074/75: 13,000,000 2073/74: 40,000,000

11. Investment in Associates

The Company has a 50% interest in its only associate, NLG Insurance Company Limited, which is involved in the non-life insurance

business in Nepal (2073/74:20%).

NLG Insurance Company Limited is a public limited company that is listed on Nepal Stock Exchange (NEPSE) and there are no
published price quotations for the fair value of this investment (promoter share). The Company’s interest in NLG Insurance
Company Limited is accounted for using the equity method in the financial statements. The reporting date and reporting period
of NLG Insurance Company Limited is the same as the Company and both use uniform accounting policies. NLG Insurance
Company Limited is required to maintain a minimum solvency margin based on Beema Samiti directives. Such restrictions
can affect the ability of the associate to transfer funds in the form of cash dividends. Therefore, there can be no assurance
that these restrictions will not become a limitation in the future. There is no unrecognized share of losses in the associate.
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1%

2074/75

NLG Insurance Co. LTD.

Place of Business Nepal
Percentage of Interest 50%
Measurement Method Equity Method

Non Current Assets
Current Assets

Non Current Liabilities

1,976,338,661
1,469,563,502
1,616,178,302

1,781,366,292
1,237,140,642
1,477,673,627

Current Liabilities 376,376,248 281,915,317
Net Assets 1,453,347,613 1,258,917,990
Company’s Share of Net Assets 726,673,807 629,458,995
Revenue 1,504,855,335 1,361,101,038
Depreciation and Amortization 4,211,746 3,170,565
Interest Income 156,735,657 94,076,472
Interest Expense 0 0
Income Tax Expense 121,439,119 94,340,129
Profit or Loss from Continuing Operations 247,607,994 201,319,929
Psot Tax Profit or Loss from Discontinuing
Operations 0 0
Other Comprehensive Income (46,437,257) (31,375,885)
Total Comprehensive Income 201,170,736 169,944,044
Company’s Share of Profits 123,803,997 100,659,965
a) Profit Transferred to Share holders 12,380,400 10,065,996
b)Profit transferred to Policy holders 111,423,597 90,593,968
Company’s Share of Other Comprehensive Income (23,218,629) (15,687,943)
Cash Dividends Received 0 0
Cash and Cash Equivalents 375,851,787 351,401,410
Current Financial Liabilities (Excluding Trade and
Other Payables and Provisions) 0 0

Note 25: Investment in Associates

2074/75 (Rs.)

2073/74 (Rs.)

2072/73 (Rs.)

Cost of investment 112,500,000 112,500,000 112,500,000
Share of Post Acquisition profit upto 2072/73 24,442,576 24,442,576 24,442,576
Share of Post Acquisition profit for 2073/74 84,972,022 84,972,022 -
Share of Post Acquisition profit for 2074/75 100,585,368 - -
Total 322,499,966 221,914,598 136,942,576
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Cash Dividends have not been received from NLG Insurance Company Limited during the reporting period

Management considers the investment in NLG Insurance Company Limited to be more than 12 months’investment.

The associate had no contingent liabilities or capital commitments as at 31 Ashadh 2075 or 2074. And no guarantees or collaterals

were provided to the associate.

12. Loans and Receivables at Amortized Cost

Particulars 2074/75 (Rs.) 2073/74 (Rs.) 2072/73 (Rs.)
1 Loans to related parties 0 0 0
2 Receivables from related parties 0 0 0
3 Deposits with credit institutions 0 0 0
4 Other Deposits 808,652 801,652 5,018,590
5 Loans to Agents 75,264,996 74,619,978 74,172,608

Less: Impairment 8,063,153 5,692,529 5,692,529

Net Loans to Agents 67,201,843 68,927,449 68,480,079
6 Loans to Employees 32,760,903 23,109,251 22,857,626

Less: Impairment 0 0 0

Net Loans to Employees 32,760,903 23,109,251 22,857,626
7  Loans to Policyholders 2,544,009,892 1,721,592,865 1,257,166,518
8  Sundry Debtors 28,391,617 21,385,795 35,470,241
9  Advance Payments 836,106 836,106 836,106
10 Employee Advance 3,682,824 4,368,247 5,075,122
11 Other Advances 5,305,803 16,474,108 11,346,585
12 Stationery 2,523,422 2,535,675 2,637,166
13 Receivable against matured investment 10,030,000 10,030,000 40,430,000
14 Prepaid Expenses 2,582,467 0 0

Total 2,698,133,530 1,870,061,148 1,449,318,033

13. Other Assets

Accrued on Investments 94,114,019 54,269,794 66,091,371
2 Accrued on Policyholders Loan 317,783,781 234,520,300 167,201,539
3 Accrued on Loans to Employees 0 0 0
4 Deferred Expenses on Employee Benefit 16,541,531 2,896,689 2,849,370
Total 428,439,332 291,686,783 236,142,280

14. Current Tax Assets

As at 31 Shrawan 2073 586,437,053 318,702,121 284,705,780
Additions during the year 164,337,357 267,734,932 33,996,341
Total 750,774,410 586,437,053 318,702,121
Less: Provision for Income Tax (405,036,824) (315,789,890) (76,032,219)
5 Total 345,737,586 270,647,163 242,669,902

Yo
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15. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash in Hand 441,357 264,723 154,244
2 Cash at Bank 363,756,196 327,761,458 133,741,327
3 Call Deposits 203,099,156 111,109,347 162,103,762
4 Cash Cheque Drafts in Hand 98,732,381 82,751,481 0
5 Gold Coins 525,039 474,039 423,039
6 Total 666,554,129 522,361,049 296,422,372

Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months, depending on the immediate cash

requirements of the Company.

The carrying amounts disclosed above reasonably approximate fair value at the reporting date.

16. Share Capital

Particulars

2074/75 (Rs.)

2073/74 (Rs.)

2072/73 (Rs.)

1  Authorized Capital
500,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs 100 each
Issued Capital
4,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs 100 each
Subscribed Capital
.................. Equity Shares of Rs 100 each
Paidup Capital
16560795 Equity Shares of Rs 100 each

Less Calls in Arears

5,000,000,000

4,000,000,000

1,656,079,588

5,000,000,000

3,000,000,000

1,656,079,588

5,000,000,000

3,000,000,000

1,324,863,670

5 Total Paid Up Capital

1,656,079,588

1,656,079,588

1,324,863,670

Changes in Share Capital

Opening Share Capital

1,656,079,588

1,324,863,670

1,019,125,900

Add: Bonus Shares Issued 331,215,918 305,737,770
Add: Right Shares Issued
Closing Share Capital 1,656,079,588 1,656,079,588 1,324,863,670

{5
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Share Ownership

Share holder 2074/75 (Rs.) 2073/74 (Rs.) 2072/73 (Rs.)

No. of % of No. of % of No. of % of
Ordinary ownership | Ordinary Share | ownership | Ordinary | ownership
Share Share

Promoter  Nepalese Companies 1,685,648 1,685,648 1,348,518
(Rastriya Banijya Bank)
Nepalese Citizen 8,917,363 53 8,917,363 53 7,133,890 53
International 353,679 2 353,679 2 282,943 2
Total 10,956,689 65 10,956,689 65 8,765,351 65
Public 5,604,106 35 5,604,106 35 4,483,285 35
Other ( Details Required) - - - - - -
Total 16,560,795 100 16,560,795 100 3,248,636 100

List of Shareholders Holding More Than 1% Of Share Capital

2074/75 (Rs)) 2073/74 (Rs))

SN Particulars % of % of % of
. Amount . Amount . Amount
ownership ownership ownership

1 Siddheshwor Kumar Singh 11.75 194,623,500 11.75 11.93

194,623,500 158,098,800
2 Rastriya Banijya Bank 10.18 168,564,800 10.18 10.18

168,564,800 134,851,860
3 Nepal Investment Bank Ltd. 573 94,956,800 573 94,956,800 573 75,965,500
4 Rana Bahadur Shah 533 88,322,900 533 88,322,900 533 70,658,380
5 Rita Malla 3.14 51,919,700 3.14 51,919,700 3.14 41,535,780
6 Prema Rajya Laxmi Singh 2.82 46,690,300 2.82 46,690,300 2.82 37,352,250
7 Ishwari Prasad Rimal 223 36,974,000 2.23 36,974,000 223 29,579,290
8 Sleekquote Ltd. 2.14 35,367,900 2.14 35,367,900 2.14 28,294,370
9 Hridayeshwor Kumar Singh - - - - 1.06 14,002,800
10 Rajeev Bikram Shah 1.53 25,284,600 1.53 25,284,600 1.53 20,227,740
11 Bharati Gurung 1.36 22,573,200 136 22,573,200 1.36 18,058,560
12 Bharat Bahadur Basnet 1.14 18,921,000 1.14 18,921,000 1.14 15,136,810
13 Prudential Capital 1.09 18,094,600 1.09 18,094,600 1.09 14,475,760

Management Co. Pvt. Ltd
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17. Share Premium

1 As at 1 shrawan 37,033,520 57,033,520 157,033,520
2 Add: Premiums on shares for the year 0 0 0
3 less: Transferred to Bonus Share payable 0 (20,000,000) (100,000,000)
4 Total Retained Earnings 37,033,520 37,033,520 57,033,520

18 Retained Earnings

1 As at 1 shrawan 377,593,997 337,983,179

2 Profit for the year 511,281,492 441,633,166 690,492,563

3 Provisions written back ( Provision for loss on 0 0 10,933,732
investment)

4 Transfer from Deffered Tax Reserve Fund 0 0 7,000,063

5 Profit Share of Associate 0 0 2,444,258

6 Transferred to Catastrophe Reserve (47,423,901) (40,915,379) (34,971,930)

7 Issuance of Bonus Shares 0 (311,215,918) (305,737,770)

8 Cash Dividend 0 (17,432,417) (16,091,461)

9 Transferred to Regulatory Reserve (36,762,894) (32,458,635) (16,086,275)
Total Retained Earnings 804,688,693 377,593,997 337,983,179

19. Catastrophe Reserve

1 Opening Balance 135,887,121 94,971,742 59,999,812
2 Transferred from Retained Earnings 47,423,901 40,915,379 34,971,930
Closing Balance 183,311,022 135,887,121 94,971,742

20 Other Reserves

1 Opening Reserves 164,643,160 165,153,717

2 Deffered Tax reserve fund 0 0 7,000,063
3 OCI- Fair Value Reserve (476,094,839) (217,226,382) 1,633,985,676
4 Rent Equilization Reserve (8,897,638) (11,246,555) (14,331,126)
5 Acturial Gain or Loss 0 0 0
6 Regulatory Reserve 36,762,894 32,458,635 16,086,275
7 Total (283,586,424) (30,860,584) 1,642,740,889
8 Less: Transferred to Retained Earnings 0 0 (7,000,063)
9 Less: Transferred to Insurance Contract Liabilities 428,485,355 195,503,744  (1,470,587,108)
10 Total 144,898,932 164,643,160 165,153,717

Catastrophe Reserve: It is a mandatory statutory reserve in which 10% of profits as per Old GAAP is transferred every year.
The same has been provided for as per the ciricular dated 2075/09/12 issued by beema samiti.

Deffered Tax Reseerve Fund: The deffered yax reserve fund was mandated by the old GAAP and as the same is not required
as per NFRS, the same is transferred to retained earnings.

OClI-Fair Value Reserve: It is an unrealised reserve created for the change in fair value of the held for sale financial assets that
have been measured at fair value through OCI.

Rent Equilization Reserve: It is reserve created for equilizing the rentals over the period of the lease. The lease rentals are
not constant and there is an escalation in the lease rentals.
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22 Unrealised Gains Reserve

Opening 289,673,220 128,640,373
1 Profit on share of Associate 111,423,597 90,593,968 21,998,318
2 Fair Value Gains and Losses on Investment Property 137,980,354 70,438,879 106,642,055
Total 539,077,171 289,673,220 128,640,373

23. Financial Liabilities

1 Payables to Agents 111,089,880 63,564,547 62,267,879
2 Premium Suspense 7,571,620 5,061,634 3,805,513
3 Sundry Creditors 248,978,865 131,890,059 121,953,881
4 Withheld Tax 86,283,362 70,770,582 67,421,393
5 Auditors Remuneration and Expenses 2,047,022 965,656 1,406,397
6 Service Fee Payable 64,906,652 51,046,719 32,874,552
7 Dividend Payable 9,926,545 10,663,999 12,808,425
8 Foreign Exchange Fluctuation 8,342 8,342 0
9 Re-Insurance Payables 33,580,490 28,667,803 16,995,878
10 Loan against Government Bonds* 0 0 0

Total Trade and Other Payables 564,392,776 362,639,341 319,533,918

The carrying amounts disclosed above reasonably approximate fair value at the reporting date and are payable within one year.

*The Company had short-term borrowings against fixed deposits. The borrowings have been repaid within the year. Interest was
paid for 2074/75:Rs.8,647,672 2073/74:Rs.26,913,990

24. Other Liabilities

1 Payable to Employees 4,264,401 3,850,884 2,302,012
2 Bonus Payable to Employees 74,052,303 76,900,619 61,785,467
3 Defined benefit obligation 87,833,209 65,970,757 44,490,836
4 Retention and Deposits 16,187,322 15,433,493 15,543,509
5 Premium Deposits 10,166,351 0 0
6 Outstanding liabilities relating to non-life transaction 766,080 766,080 766,080

Total Other Liabilities 193,269,666 162,921,833 124,887,904

25. Deferred Tax
2074775 () 2073774 () 2072173 )

1 Deferred Tax liability-OCl 334,096,829 480,047,573 544,661,892
2 Deferred Tax liability- SOPL 5,159,661 (2,644,772) (3,983,455)
Total 339,256,490 477,402,802 540,678,437
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26. Provisions

S.N | Particular Provision at the | Provision at the | Provision at the
end of theyear | end of the year | end of the year

2074/75 2073/74 2072/73

2 Provision - Premium Income not deposited into bank 568,387 568,387 568,387
Other Provision - Claim payable not due 54,247,602 54,247,602 46,291,484

4 Other provision - Non life claim outstanding 2,387,264 12,387,264 12,387,264
Total 57,203,252 67,203,252 59,247,135

27. Net Premiums
(A) Gross and net premiums of insurance contracts

207475 1) | 207374 )
1

Life Insurance 6,447,635,019  5,060,128,261
2 Investment Contracts - -
6,447,635,019 5,060,128,261

Total Gross Premiums

Reinsurance Premium Paid

Insurance Premium (Gross) Insurance Premium (Net)

Type of Insurance Policies (ceded)
2074/75 (Rs.) 2073/74 (Rs.) | 2074/75 (Rs.) | 2073/74 (Rs.) 2074/75 (Rs.) 2073/74 (Rs.)
1 Endowment Life 2,845,577,603 2,398,405,020 17,421,128 14,659,686  2,828,156,475 2,383,745,334
Insurance Policy
2 Anticipated Endowment 1,604,435,058 1,089,653,811 25,170,882 21,430,650 1,579,264,176 1,068,223,161
Life Insurance Policy
5 Participative Endowment 1,311,787,631 986,703,483 11,099,496 9,539,697 1,300,688,135 977,163,786
& whole life Policy
3 Term Life Policy 593,206,793 516,157,504 214,668,808 187,041,131 378,537,985 329,116,373
4 Special Term Life Policy 92,627,934 69,208,442 93,948 2,116,230 92,533,986 67,092,214
Total 6,447,635,019 5,060,128,260 68,454,262 234,787,394 6,179,180,757 4,825,340,868

(B) Insurance Premium (Gross)

Reinsurance Premium
Received (Accepted)

2074/75 (Rs.) 2073/74 (Rs.) 207‘:/R755) 2073/74 (Rs.) 2074/75 (Rs.) /74 (Rs.)

2,845,577,603  2,398,405,020 ,845,577,603 2,398,405,020

Direct Insurance Premium Insurance Premium (Gross)

S.N | Type of Insurance Policies

1 Endowment Life
Insurance Policy

2 Anticipated Endowment 1,604,435,058 1,089,653,811 1,604,435,058 1,089,653,811
Life Insurance Policy

5 Participative Endowment 1,311,787,631 986,703,483 1,311,787,631 986,703,483
& whole life Policy

3 Term Life Policy 593,206,793 516,157,504 593,206,793 516,157,504

4 Special Term Life Policy 92,627,934 69,208,442 92,627,934 69,208,442

Total 6,447,635,019 5,060,128,260 6,447,635,019 5,060,128,260
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28. Fees and Commission
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1 Reinsurance Commission Income 27,077,582 23,815,045
2 Policy Revival Fees 0 0
3 Late Fee 33,930,806 36,555,303

Total Fees and Commission Income 61,008,388 60,370,348

Reinsurance Commission Income is based on premium ceded during the
year.

29. Investment Income

1 Financial Investment at amortized cost

Interest income from Govermnment Securities 12,307,250 12,307,250

Interest income from term deposits 1,635,900,161 989,052,645
2 Financial Investment at FVTOCI

Interest Income from Debentures 54,911,144 45,630,048

Dividend Income 21,370,580 678,112
3 Loans to Policyholders

Interest Income 237,681,504 159,110,895
4 Loans to Agents

Interest Income 5,830,765 7,328,570
5 Loans to Employees

Interest Income 1,834,227 1,318,606

Total Investment Income 1,969,835,631 1,215,426,126

The investment income comprise of term deposits and demand deposits. Interest income is recognized in the statement of
profit or loss as it accrues. The rate implicit on the investments, except loans to employees, approximates the effective interest
rates and the same rate is used to calculate the interest income. Loans to employees are either interest free or at concessional
rate. Interest to employees, charged lower than market rate, has been booked as income and expensed in personnel cost.

Investment income also includes dividends when the right to receive payment is established.

30 Net Realized Gains and Losses

Gains on AFS financial Assets
Equity Securities

Debt Securities

2 Loss on AFS financial Assets
Equity Securities
Debt Securities

3 Gains on Sale of Fixed Assets 33,808 657,274
Net Realized Gains/Loss 33,808 657,274

Realized gains and losses recorded in the statement of profit or loss include gains and losses on financial assets, properties and
equipment. Gains and losses on the sale of investments are calculated as the difference between net sales proceeds and the
original or amortized cost and are recorded on occurrence of the sale transaction.

Rt
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31. Other Operating Income

1 Rent from Operating Properties 42,200,424 42,200,424
2 Foreign Exchange income 5,087 -
3 Miscellaneous Income 282,409 123,674

Total Other Operating Income 42,487,920 42,324,098

Part of the corporate building is rented to third parties. Rental income from rented part is equalized over the lease period.

32 Net Benefits and Claims

Life Insurance Contracts

Death Claim 378,650,188 278,213,565
Maturity 1,185,963,606 1,121,944,030
Anticipated 157,957,158 89,270,432
Others claims 262,397,246 44,833,978
Surrender Value 67,774,522 157,861,708
2 Total Claims Ceded to Re-insurers

Change in Life Insurance Contracts Liabilities 173,107,651 132,813,925
Change in Investment Contracts Liabilities

Total Net Benefits and Claims 1,879,635,069 1,559,309,788

Gross benefits and claims for life insurance contracts include the cost of all claims arising during the year, external claims
handling costs that are directly related to the processing and settlement of claims and policyholder bonuses declared on
contracts. Changes in the gross valuation of insurance contract liabilities are also included. Death claims and surrenders are
recorded on the basis of notifications received. Maturities and annuity payments are recorded when due.

Reinsurance claims

Reinsurance claims are recognized when the related gross insurance claim is recognized according to the terms of the relevant
contract.

33 Acquisition Related Expenses

Agent Commission 608,796,242 454,928,368
2 Medical Expenses 5,170,336 4,541,994
3 Stamp 3,977,282 4,523,169
4 Others - -
Total Acquisition Related Expenses 617,943,860 463,993,532
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35. Administrative Expenses

1 Employee Benefit Expenses 243,308,984 208,269,511
2 Rent 16,002,205 13,503,034
3 Water and Electricity 3,133,114 2,485,192
4 Repairs and Maintenance 5,465,981 5,368,308
5 Communication 9,052,586 7,618,640
6 Printing and Stationery 16,490,343 13,619,377
7 Office Expenses 3,957,506 3,560,858
8 Conveyance 27,330 37,400
9 Traveling Expenses 1,561,069 1,345,056
10  Staff Recruitment Expenses 83,075 11,596
11 AgentTraining 15,003,915 9,769,411
12 Agent Others 249,068,235 168,003,360
13 Insurance Premium 1,669,474 1,254,200
14 Security Expenses 921,540 888,090
15  Legal Expenses 1,533,192 1,378,223
16  Books, Magazines and Periodicals 127,150 101,700
17  Advertisement and Publicity 8,354,301 4,752,611
18  Business Promotions 6,654,916 1,329,377
19  Entertainments 544,627 270,406
20 Donations and Gifts 658,514 216,500
21  Board Meeting Expenses 1,829,346 1,211,332
22 Other Committee Expenses 264,300 170,000
23 Annual General Meeting Expenses 1,200,098 807,670
24 Actuary Fee and Expenses 837,176 1,032,968
26  Bank Charge 757,194 482,747
29 Internal Audit Fee & Related Expenses 802,166 583,865
30 Postage and Courier expenses 1,771,335 1,496,383
31  Rates, Taxes and Fees 2,424,698 3,234,497
32 Fuel 4,476,493 5,088,519
33 Other Expenses 9,820,119 1,138,002
34  Impairment Loss on Reinsurance Assets - -
35 Impairment Loss on Loans and Receivables 2,370,624 -
36 Impairment Loss on Held for sale financial Assets 373,100 -
37  Impairment Loss on Property and Equipment 279,593 -
38 Investment Property Related Expenses - -
39 Deferred Expenses - -
40  Share related expenses 3,684,718 2,162,265
41 Ammortization of Investments 980,943 980,943
42 Auditors Remuneration and Expenses 890,240 650,250

Statutory Audit Fees 480,250

Tax Audit Fees 149,865

Long Form Audit Report Fees 20,000

Special Purpose Financials 240,125
43  Net Foreign Exchange Adjustments - 8,342
44 Other Expenses - -
45  NFRS Consultation 339,000 -

Total Administrative Expenses 616,719,199 462,830,632

Rent expense is equalized over the lease periods.
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35. Retirement Benefit Obligation

As at As at
31 Ashadh 2075 31 Ashadh 2074

Particulars - -
Gratuity Gratuity

(Funded) (Funded)

Expenses Recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss

Current Service Cost 708852 10647727 553434 7157403
Interest cost 1267555 2690690 971792 1697657
Expected Return on Plan Assets

Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss 7,172,487 3,930,001

Past Service Cost

Expenses recognized in the Profit & Loss A/c 9,148,894 13,338,417 5,455,227 8,855,060

Expenses Recognized In Other Comprehensive Income

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligation For the Period 15,923,346 7,487,301
Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income (899,368) 208,182
Net (Income)/Expense For the Period Recognized in OCI 15,023,978 7,695,483

Change in the Present Value of Projected Benefit

Obligation

Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the Beginning of the 21,125,918 66,333,150 16,196,540 48,867,474
Period

Interest Cost 1,267,555 3,979,989 971,792 2,932,048
Current Service Cost 708,852 10,647,727 553,434 7,157,403
(Benefit Paid From the Fund) (3,180,203) (111,076)
Benefits paid by the employer (2,648,837) (525,849)

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Experience 7,172,487 15,923,346 3,930,001 7,487,301
Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the End of the 27,625,975 93,704,009 21,125,918 66,333,150
Period

Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the Beginning of the Period 21,488,311 20,573,178
Interest Income 1,289,299 1,234,391
Contributions by the Employer 13,000,000 0
(Benefit Paid from the Fund) (3,180,203) (111,076)
Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income 899,368 (208,182)
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the End of the Period 33,496,775 21,488,311

Amount Recognized in SOFP

(Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the end of the Period)  (27,625,975) (93,704,009) (21,125,918) (66,333,150)
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the Period 33,496,775 21,488,311
Funded Status (Surplus/ (Deficit)) (27,625,975) (60,207,234) (21,125,918) (44,844,839)
Net (Liability)/Asset Recognized in the Balance Sheet (27,625,975) (60,207,234) (21,125,918) (44,844,839)

Actuarial Assumptions

Discount rate 6% 6%
Salary escalation rate 12.21% 12.21%
Rate of Employee Turnover 6.48% 6.48%

w®
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Mortality Rate During Employment Nepali Assured Nepali Assured

LivesMortality LivesMortality
Table, 2009 Table, 2009

Sensitivity Analysis

Projected Benefit Obligation on Current Assumptions 93,704,009 66,333,150
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Discounting (7,614,895) (6,404,360)
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Discounting 9,020,918 7,632,279
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase 8,398,515 7,104,216
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase (7,285,513) (6,128,116)
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover (3,407,664) (2,941,801)
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover 3,888,586 3,370,411

The sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at
the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.The sensitivity analysis presented above may not
be representative of the actual change in the projected benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would
occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity
analysis, the present value of the projected benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the
end of the reporting period, which is the same method as applied in calculating the projected benefit obligation as recognised
in the balance sheet.There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior
years.

Qualitative Disclosures

Para 139 (a) Characteristics of defined benefit planThe Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan in Nepal (funded). The
company’s defined benefit gratuity plan is a final salary plan for employees, which requires contributions to be made to a
separately administered fund.The fund is managed by a trust which is governed by the Board of Trustees. The Board of Trustees
are responsible for the administration of the plan assets and for the definition of the investment strategy.

Para 139 (b) Risks associated with defined benefit planGratuity is a defined benefit plan and company is exposed to the Following
Risks:

Interest rate risk: A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the G.Sec. Rate will increase the present value of the liability requiring
higher provision. A fall in the discount rate generally increases the mark to market value of the assets depending on the duration
of asset.

Salary Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of members. As
such, an increase in the salary of the members more than assumed level will increase the plan's liability.

Investment Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by
reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. If the return on plan asset is below this rate, it
will create a plan deficit. Currently, for the plan in Nepal, it has a relatively balanced mix of investments in government securities,
and other debt instruments.

Asset Liability Matching Risk: The plan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cash flow. Since the plan is invested in lines of
Income Tax Rules, this generally reduces ALM risk.

Mortality risk: Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payable till retirement age only, plan does not
have any longevity risk.

Concentration Risk: Plan is having a concentration risk as all the assets are invested with the insurance company and a default
will wipe out all the assets. Although probability of this is very less as insurance companies have to follow regulatory guidelines.

Para 139 (c) Characteristics of defined benefit plansDuring the year, there were no plan amendments, curtailments and
settlements.

Para 147 (a)A separate trust fund is created to manage the Gratuity plan and the contributions towards the trust fund is done as
guided by Income Tax Rules.



T ATSh e FHT (AHde I

aifie ufddger 2008/0by

35A: Employee Benefit Expenses
SN | Particulars 2074/75 (Rs.) 2073/74 (Rs.)
1 Salary 69,909,209 60,384,947
2 Other Allowance 81,432,655 62,801,921
3 Dashain Allowance 4,920,795 4,764,545
4 Providend Fund 4,763,264 4,372,602
5 Training Expenses 768,080 1,730,938
6 Uniform Expenses 248,854 56,939
7 Staff Insurance Expenses 20,043 10,551,751
8 Gratuity & Pension 13,359,767 8,855,060
9 Leave Encashment 13,771,972 9,583,139
10  Staff Refreshment Expenses 4,169,516 2,869,968
11 Employee Bonus 48,533,393 41,424,747
12 Amortization of Deferred Employee Expenses 1,411,436 872,955

Total Personnel Cost 243,308,984 208,269,511

36. Finance Cost

Finance cost represents borrowing cost of short-term borrowing. There is no outstanding borrowing at the end of financial year.

37. Income Tax

The major components of income tax expense for the year are as below.

Note 37 A: Income Tax - Statement of Profit or Loss

Current Tax 174,736,470.55 83,253,218.71
Income Tax 186,188,253.30 73,911,174.71
Prior Year Adjustment (11,451,782.75) 9,342,044.00
2 Deferred Tax 7,804,432.80 1,338,683.44
3 Total Income tax Expense 182,540,903.35 84,591,902.15
4 Income Tax Expense Realting to Policyholders
5 Income Tax Expense Realting to Shareholders

A deferred tax liability has not been recognized in respect of the investment in the associate. The Company has determined that

the undistributed profits of its associate will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

Note 37B: Income Tax - OCI

Current Tax
Deferred Tax 145,950,744 64,614,319
Total Tax Charge to OCI 145,950,744 64,614,319

v MW (N

Tax Change Realting to Policyholders
Tax Change Realting to Shareholders

Deferred Tax recognized is on account of unrealized gains on investments.
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Note 37C: Reconciliation of Tax Charge
2074/75 (Rs.)

693,822,395.12
173,455,598.78

SN | Particulars
1 Profit Before Tax
2 Tax at statutory income tax rate of 25%

Non Taxable Income and Expense

2073/74 (Rs.)

526,225,068.49
131,556,267.12

Premium (1,544,795,189.18) (1,206,335,216.67)
Fair Value gains and losses (3,832,787.60) (1,956,635.53)
Share of profit of an associate (3,095,099.92) (2,516,499.11)
Dividend income (5,342,645.00) (169,528.00)
Net Claim benefits 469,908,767.19 389,827,447.00
Rent Equilization Income (2,261,398.00) (2,994,462.50)
Changes in Insurance Contract Liabilities 1,093,568,732.26 763,594,958.26
Rent Equilization Expense 36,988.50 182,823.75
Foreign exchange loss 0.00 2,085.39
Taxable Income and Expense

Income from Gratuity with CIT 354,692.27 256,552.31
Disallowed Expense

Donation and gifts 164,628.50 54,125.00
Leave encashment 3,442,993.00 2,395,784.75
Gratuity 3,339,941.75 2,213,765.00
Impairment Loss on Loans and Receivables 592,656.00 0.00
Impairment Loss on Held for sale financial Assets 93,275.00 0.00
Impairment Loss on Property and Equipment 69,898.25 0.00
Depreciation 6,855,780.57 5,026,249.75
Fine and Penalty 2,092,198.51 0.00
Repair and Maintenance Capitalized 251,944.25 0.00
Ammortization of Investments 245,235.75 245,235.75
Allowed expenses

Depreciation (6,339,591.00) (5,786,288.37)
Leave Encashment (1,817,978.75) (1,163,440.34)
Gratuity (800,388.25) (522,048.88)
Total Tax Charge for the year 186,188,252.88 73,911,174.71

Note 37D: Deferred Tax-SOPL

Fair Value gains and Losses 3,832,787.60 1,956,635.53
2 Rent Equalization, net 8,897,638.28 2,811,638.68
4 Employee Benefit Expenses (4,164,567.76) (3,956,013.63)
5 Impairment loss on loans and receivables 0.00 0.00
6 Impairment loss on Equipment 0.00 0.00
7 Amortization of investments (245,235.75) (245,235.75)
8 Depreciation (516,189.57) 771,658.61

At 31 Ashadh 7,804,432.80 1,338,683.44
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Note 37E: Reconciliation of Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities, Net
SN | Particulars 2074/75 (Rs.) 2073/74 (Rs.)

As at 1 Shrawan 477,402,802 540,678,437
1 Amounts recorded in the statement of profit or loss 7,804,433 1,338,683
2 Amounts recorded in the statement of OCI (145,950,744) (64,614,319)
3 Foreign Exchange Adjustments 0 0
4  At31Ashadh 339,256,490 477,402,802

38. Dividends Paid and Proposed

Dividends payable to the shareholders are capitalized in the year the AGM approves the dividends proposed by the board.

Proposed dividend for F.Y. 2017-18
The Board of Directors in its 417th meeting dated 05.09.2019 has proposed the following dividends for the F.Y. 2017-18

Bonus Shares 75,186,013 357,713,191
Cash Dividend 364,850,023 18,827,010

39. Earnings per share

The following reflects the profit and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders for basic and diluted earnings 511,281,492 441,633,166
2 Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS 16,560,796 12,420,597
3 Effect of Dilution 13,513,609 9,936,478
4 Share Options 0 0
5 Weighted average number of equity shares adjusted for the effect of dilution 30,074,405 22,357,074
6 Basic earnings per ordinary shares 30.87 35.56
7 Diluted earnings per ordinary shares 17.00 19.75

Basic earnings per share (EPS) amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year, plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would
be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

There have been no other transactions involving ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares between the reporting date and the
date of authorization of these financial statements.

93
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40 Risk Management framework

40.1 Governance framework

The primary objective of the Company’s risk and financial management framework is to protect the Company’s shareholders from
events that obstruct the sustainable achievement of financial performance objectives, including failing to exploit opportunities.
Key management recognizes the critical importance of having efficient and effective risk management systems in place.

The Board of Directors establishes policies for governance and oversight. In addition to the Board of Directors there are following
committees to discharge related functions.

Audit Committee:
The audit committee of the company is responsible for monitoring the internal control budgeting and internal audit of the company.
The committee consists of three members under the leadership of the public director.

Investment, risk management and solvency Committee:

The Investment, risk management and solvency committee is responsible for assessing the risk related to all functions of the
company. The committee is also responsible for monitoring the investments made by the company and assessing the solvency
situation of the company as well.

Human Resource Committee:
The Human Resource Committee is responsible for monitoring all human resource related functions such as promotion, recruitment,
disciplinary actions, salary increments etc.

Anti-money laundering Committee:
The committee is responsible for assuring that the company complies with the anti-money laundering directives issued by Beema
Samiti and Nepal Rastra Bank.

Claim payment and reinsurance committee:
The committee is responsible for ensuring that all genuine claims are paid by the company swiftly to the claimants and the company
doesn't retain more risk than it should through proper reinsurance treaties.

This is supplemented with a clear organizational structure with documented delegated authorities and responsibilities from the
board of directors to the committees and senior managers. These policies ensure the appropriate quality and diversification of
assets, align underwriting and reinsurance strategy to the corporate goals, and specify reporting requirements.

40.2 Capital management objectives, policies and approach
The Company has established the following capital management objectives, policies and approach to managing the risks that
affect its capital position:

« To maintain the required level of stability of the Company thereby providing a degree of security to policyholders

+ To allocate capital efficiently and support the development of business by ensuring that returns on capital employed meet the
requirements of its capital providers and shareholders.

- To retain financial flexibility by maintaining strong liquidity and access to a range of capital markets.

+ To align the profile of assets and liabilities taking account of risks inherent in the business.

« To maintain financial strength to support new business growth and to satisfy the requirements of the policyholders, regulators
and stakeholders

« To maintain strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business objectives and maximize shareholders
value.

The operations of the Company are also subject to regulatory requirements of Nepal. Such regulations not only prescribe approval
and monitoring of activities, but also impose certain restrictive provisions (e.g., capital adequacy) to minimize the risk of default and
insolvency on the part of the insurance companies to meet unforeseen liabilities as they arise.

The Company has met all of these requirements throughout the financial year.
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In reporting financial strength, capital and solvency are measured using the rules prescribed by the Beema Samiti (Regulating
agency for insurance Companies in Nepal). These regulatory capital tests are based upon required levels of solvency, capital and a
series of prudent assumptions in respect of the type of business written.

The Company’s capital management policy for its business is to hold sufficient capital to cover the statutory requirements based on
the Beema Samiti directives, including any additional amounts required by the regulator.

Approach to Capital Management
The Company seeks to optimize the structure and sources of capital to ensure that it consistently maximizes returns to the
shareholders and policyholders.

The Company’s approach to managing capital involves managing assets, liabilities and risks in a coordinated way, assessing
shortfalls between reported and required capital levels on a regular basis and taking appropriate actions to influence the capital
position of the Company in the light of changes in economic conditions and risk characteristics.

The primary source of capital used by the Company is total equity and reserves. The Company also utilizes, where it is efficient to do
so, sources of capital such as reinsurance and securitization, in addition to more traditional sources of funding.

The Company has made no significant changes, from previous years, to its policies and processes for its capital structure.

Available capital resources at the end of financial years

Description 2074/75 2073/74
Total Equity 2,826,005,853 2,371,221,829
Borrowings 0 0
Total shareholders fund as per financial statements 2,826,005,853 2,371,221,829
Adjustments onto a regulatory basis 1,425,974,314 1,874,555,821
Available Capital 1,400,031,539 496,666,007

The adjustments onto a regulatory basis represent assets inadmissible for regulatory reporting purposes.

40.3 Regulatory Framework

Regulators are primarily interested in protecting the rights of policyholders and monitor them closely to ensure that the Company
is satisfactorily managing affairs for their benefit. At the same time, regulators are also interested in ensuring that the Company
maintains an appropriate solvency position to meet unforeseen liabilities arising from economic shocks or natural disasters.

The operations of the Company are subject to regulatory requirements of Nepal. Such regulations not only prescribe approval and
monitoring of activities, but also impose certain restrictive provisions (e.g., capital adequacy) to minimize the risk of default and
insolvency on the part of insurance companies to meet unforeseen liabilities as these arise.

40.4 Assets liabilities management framework

Financial risks arise from open positions in interest rate, currency and equity products, all of which are exposed to general and
specific market movements. The main risk that the Company faces, due to the nature of its investments and liabilities, is interest rate
risk. The Company manages these positions within an ALM framework that has been developed to achieve long-term investment
returns in excess of its obligations under insurance contracts. The principal technique of the Company’s ALM is to match assets to
the liabilities arising from insurance contracts. The Company’s ALM is an integral part of the insurance risk management policy, to
ensure in each period sufficient cash flow is available to meet liabilities arising from insurance contracts.

41. Insurance and Financial risk

The principal risk the Company faces under insurance contracts is that the actual claims and benefit payments or the timing
thereof, differ from expectations. This is influenced by the frequency of claims, severity of claims, actual benefits paid. Therefore,
the objective of the Company is to ensure that sufficient reserves are available to cover these liabilities.
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The risk exposure is mitigated by diversification across a large portfolio of insurance contracts and geographical areas. The
variability of risks is also improved by careful selection and implementation of underwriting strategy guidelines, as well as the use
of reinsurance arrangements.

The Company has executed reinsurance agreement with Handover Re, Malaysia and Nepal Re as part of its risks mitigation program.
Reinsurance ceded is placed on both a proportional and non-proportional basis. The majority of proportional reinsurance is quota-
share reinsurance which is taken out to reduce the overall exposure of the Company. Non—proportional reinsurance is primarily
excess—of-loss reinsurance designed to mitigate the group’s net exposure to catastrophe losses.

Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with the outstanding claims provision and are in
accordance with the reinsurance contracts. Although the Company has reinsurance arrangements, it is not relieved of its direct
obligations to its policyholders and thus a credit exposure exists with respect to ceded insurance, to the extent that any reinsurer is
unable to meet its obligations assumed under such reinsurance agreement.

Life Insurance Contracts

Life insurance contracts offered by the Company include: endowment life insurance policy, anticipated endowment life insurance
policy, participative endowment & whole life policy, term life policy and special term life policy.

Endowment policy is a life insurance contract designed to pay a lump sum after a specific term (on its 'maturity') or on death. Whole
life and term assurance are conventional regular premium products when lump sum benefits are payable on death or permanent
disability. Few contracts have a surrender value. Some contracts are participatory and some are non-participatory.

The main risks that the Company is exposed to are as follows:

+ Mortality risk — risk of loss arising due to policyholder death experience being different than expected.

+ Investment return risk — risk of loss arising from actual returns being different than expected

+ Expense risk - risk of loss arising from expense experience being different than expected

+ Policyholder decision risk — risk of loss arising due to policyholder experiences (lapses and surrenders) being different than
expected.

These risks do not vary significantly in relation to the location of the risk insured by the Company or type of risk insured. There is
no standalone product in the Company’s portfolio with morbidity and longevity risks. Hence, the Company is not exposed to these
risks

The Company’s underwriting process is designed to evaluate risks in accepting application of insurance. This is largely achieved
the use of medical screening in order to ensure that pricing takes account of current health conditions and family medical history,
regular review of actual claims experience and product pricing, as well as detailed claims’ handling procedures. Underwriting
limits are in place to enforce appropriate risk selection criteria. For example, the Company has the right to reject the payment of
fraudulent claims.

For contracts for which death or disability is the insured risk, the significant factors that could increase the overall frequency of
claims are epidemics, widespread changes in lifestyle and natural disasters, resulting in earlier or more claims than expected.
Reinsurance limits for catastrophe is as under:

Warranted minimum No. of persons 50
Maximum liability of the reinsurer in any one event NPR 85,00,00,000
Maximum Annual Liability of Reinsurer NPR 85,00,00,000
Catastrophe retention of the ceding company NPR 1,00,00,000

The insurance risk described above is also affected by the contract holder’s right to pay no future premiums, to terminate the
contract completely or to surrender the policy. As a result, the amount of insurance risk is also subject to contract holder behavior.

The following tables show the concentration of life insurance contract liabilities by type of contract.
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41.1 Risk assumed
Sum assured as of the end of 2075 Ashadh is as follows:

Rs.’000

Sum Assured with Bonus Sun Assured without Bonus Total Insurance Liabilities

Individual Plans 56,994,125 152,789 57,146,914
Group Plans 7,280,686 6,966,136 14,246,822
Total 64,274,811 7,118,925 71,393,736

The company has ensured satisfactory reinsurance arrangements.

41.2 Key Assumptions
The key assumptions to which the estimation of liabilities is particularly sensitive are, as follows:

41.2.1 Mortality rates
Assumptions are based on 100% of NALM (Nepal Assured Lives Mortality) 2009 Tables based on the observed mortality of Nepalese
lives up till September 2009. Use of this table is mandatory under directives of Beema Samiti.

An increase in rates will lead to a larger number of claims (and claims could occur sooner than anticipated), which will increase the
expenditure and reduce profits for the shareholders.

41.2.2 Investment Return
Investment return is based on the historical and current returns earned by the Company, as well as the expected outlook for the
future, subject to maximum of 6% as prescribed by Beema Samiti..

An increase in investment return would lead to an increase in profits for the shareholders.

41.2.4 Expenses

The expense assumptions reflect the projected costs of maintaining and servicing in-force policies and associated overhead
expenses. The current level of expenses is taken as the expense base, and expense inflation of 4% per annum is assumed in the cash
flow projections.

An increase in the level of expenses would result in an increase in expenditure, thereby reducing profits for the shareholders

41.2.5 Lapse and surrender rates
Lapses relate to the termination of policies due to non—-payment of premiums. Surrenders relate to the voluntary termination of
policies by policyholders. Policy termination assumptions are not considered.

Anincrease in lapse rates early in the life of the policy would tend to reduce profits for shareholders, but later increases are broadly
neutral in effect.

41.2.6 Discount rate

Life insurance liabilities are determined as the sum of the discounted value of the expected benefits and future administration
expenses directly related to the contract, less the discounted value of the expected theoretical premiums that would be required
to meet these future cash outflows. Discount rate is equal to rate adopted for investment return.

A decrease in the discount rate will increase the value of the insurance liability and therefore reduce profits for the shareholders.

The assumptions that have the greatest effect on the statement of financial position and statement of profit or loss of the Company
are listed below:
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Assumptions 2074/75 2073/74
Mortality 100% 100%
Investment return rate 6% 5.70%
Discount rate 6% 5.70%
Expense inflation rate 4% 4%
41.3 Sensitivities

The following analysis is performed for reasonably possible movements in key assumptions with all other assumptions held
constant, showing the impact on gross and net liabilities, profit before tax and equity. The correlation of assumptions will have
a significant effect in determining the ultimate claims liabilities, but to demonstrate the impact due to changes in assumptions,
assumptions had to be changed on an individual basis. It should be noted that movements in these assumptions are non-linear.
Sensitivity information will also vary according to the current economic assumptions, mainly due to the impact of changes to both
the intrinsic cost and time value of options and guarantees. When options and guarantees exist, they are the main reason for the
asymmetry of sensitivities.

Normal Business:
e Sensitivity Used Increas.e/D.e.ct.‘ease in Incre.ase./ !).ecrease in
Gross Liabilities Net Liabilities
2018 2017 2018 2017
Mortality and | +10%i.e. 110% of NALM 2006 - 08 0.55% 0.58% -0.03% 0.08%
Morbidity -10% i.e. 90% of NALM 2006-08 -0.56% -0.59% 0.03% | -0.08%
Investment Same as the results for Discount Rate provided below
+10% i.e. 110% of Valuation assumptions 1.28% 1.62% 1.28% 1.62%
Expenses -10% i.e. 90% of Valuation assumptions -1.25% -1.58% -1.26% | -1.59%
+1% i.e. 7% for year ended 16.07.2018, 6.7% for the -10.13% -11.31% -10.16% | -11.32%
Discount Rate year ended 15.07.2017
-1% i.e. 5% for year ended 16.07.2018, 4.7% for the 13.03% 15.06% 13.07% | 15.08%
year ended 15.07.2017
Foreign Employment:
nmstian Sensitivity Used Increas?/D.e.crease in Incre?se./ !).ecrease in
Gross Liabilities Net Liabilities
+10% i.e. 110% of NALM 2006 - 08 9.19% 8.22%
Mortality and Morbidity
-10% i.e. 90% of NALM 2006-08 -9.20% -8.225
Investment Same as the results for Discount Rate provided below
Expenses +10%i.e.110% of Valuation assumptions 0.79% 1.77%
-10% i.e. 90% of Valuation assumptions -0.79% -1.77%
+1% i.e. 7% for year ended 16.07.2018, -1.18% -1.18%
6.7% for the year ended 15.07.2017
Discount Rate
-1% i.e. 5% for year ended 16.07.2018, 1.21% 1.21%
4.7% for the year ended 15.07.2017
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41.4 Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss to the other party by failing to discharge an
obligation.

The following policies and procedures are in place to mitigate the Company’s exposure to credit risk:
Net exposure limits are set on the basis of directives of Beema Samiti for each type of investments.
Reinsurance is placed with counterparty that has a good credit rating. At each reporting date, management performs an
assessment of creditworthiness of reinsurer and updates the reinsurance purchase strategy, ascertaining suitable allowance for

impairment.

The credit risk in respect of premiums or contributions will only persist during the grace period specified in the policy document,
when the policy is either converted into paid up or terminated. Commission paid to intermediaries is netted off against amounts
receivable from them to reduce the risk of doubtful debts.
The credit risk on loans to policyholders is not envisaged as the policy is terminated if outstanding amount of loan and interest

equals surrender value of the policy.

41.4.1 Credit Exposure
The Company’s gross maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the statement of financial position at 16/07/2018 and
2017 is the carrying amounts as presented in Note 26. There is no risk for financial guarantees as the Company has not provided
any guarantee. The maximum risk exposure presented below does not include the exposure that arises in the future as a result of
the changes in values.

The credit risk analysis below is presented in line with how the Company manages the risk. The Company manages its credit risk
exposure based on the carrying value of the financial instruments.

Banks &
N | | (c] t
Particulars Financial = nsuran.ce Policyholders Hydropower ov?rnrren Others
. Government Companies Institutions
Institutions

Financial
Investment at 19,414,877,000 225,130,943
Amortised cost
Loans and
receivables at 10,030,000 2,544,009,892 143,965,258
Amortised cost
Financial
Investment at 935,018,617 50,166,600 5,815,389 1,778,000 6,175,251
FVTOCI
Other Assets 94,114,019 317,783,781 16,541,531
Cash and Short 666,554,129
term deposit
Total CreditRisk | | 120,593,765 | 225,130,943 | 50,166,600 | 2,861,793,673 | 5815389 1,778,000 166,682,040

Exposure
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Credit Exposure by Rating

Particulars Neither Past Due Unlisted Past Due but Past Due but
nor impaired Companies not impaired impaired

Financial Investment at 19,629,977,943 10,030,000 19,640,007,943
Amortised cost

Loans and receivables at 2,698,005,150 8,063,153 2,706,068,303
Amortised cost

Financial Investment at 998,953,857 50,166,600 373,100 1,049,493,557
FVTOCI

Other Assets 94,114,019 94,114,019
Cash and Short term deposit 666,554,129 666,554,129
Total 24,087,605,098 50,166,600 18,466,253 | 24,156,237,951

Impaired financial assets
As at 16/07/2018 there are impaired loans and receivables of Rs.8,063,153.

For assets to be classified as “past due but not impaired” contractual payments must be in arrears for more than 90 days. No collateral
is held as security for any past due or impaired assets.

The Company records impairment allowances for loans and receivables in a separate impairment allowance account. A reconciliation
of the allowance for impairment losses for loans and receivables is, as follows:

Particulars 2074/75

As at the Beginning of the year 5,692,529
Charge for the year 2,370,624
Recoveries

Written off during the year
As at the end of the year 8,063,153

41.5 Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that are
settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. In respect of catastrophic events there is also a liquidity risk associated with the
timing differences between gross cash out-flows and expected reinsurance recoveries.

The following policies and procedures are in place to mitigate the Group’s exposure to liquidity risk:

+ A liquidity risk policy which sets out the assessment and determination of what constitutes liquidity risk for the Company.
Compliance with the policy is monitored and exposures and breaches are reported to the Company risk committee. The policy is
regularly reviewed for pertinence and for changes in the risk environment.

« Contingency funding plans are in place, which specify minimum proportions of funds to meet emergency calls as well as
specifying events that would trigger such plans.

« The Group’s catastrophe excess—of-loss reinsurance contracts contain clauses permitting the immediate draw down of funds to
meet claim payments should claim events exceed a certain size.

« The Company has facility of short-term borrowings to meet its short-term liquidity problems.

Maturity Profile
The following table summarizes the maturity profile of the financial assets, financial liabilities and insurance contract liabilities of
the Company based on remaining undiscounted contractual obligations, including interest payable and receivable.

For insurance contracts liabilities and reinsurance assets, maturity profiles are determined based on estimated timing of net cash
outflows from the recognized insurance liabilities. Repayments which are subject to notice are treated as if notice were to be given
immediately.
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The Company maintains a portfolio of highly marketable and diverse assets that can be easily liquidated in the event of an
unforeseen interruption of cash flow. The Company also has committed lines of credit that it can access to meet liquidity needs.

Particulars Carrying Amount Upto 1 year 1-5 years Above 5 years No Maturity date
Assets

Investment Properties 729,139,173 729,139,173
Investment In an 322,499,966 322,499,966
Associate

Financial Investment at 19,640,007,943 4,101,180,943 13,335,670,000 2,203,157,000

Amortised cost

Loans and receivables at 2,698,133,530 38,016,436 2,660,117,093

Amortised cost

Financial Investment at 2,335,341,173 26,437,830 33,787,310 2,275,116,033
FVTOCI

Current Tax Assets 345,737,586 345,737,586
Other Assets 428,439,332 428,439,332

Cash and Cash 666,554,129 666,554,129

Equivalents

Total 27,165,852,831 5,234,190,840 13,362,107,830 4,897,061,403 3,672,492,758
Liabilities

Insurance Contract 22,899,353,373 22,899,353,373

Liabilities

Unrealised Gains 539,077,171 539,077,171

Reserve

Financial Liabilities 564,392,776 564,392,776

Other Liabilities 193,269,666 105,436,457 87,833,209

Provisions 57,203,252 57,203,252

Total 24,253,296,238 669,829,233 0 23,583,467,005 0
Total Liquidity Gap 2,912,556,594 4,564,361,607 13,362,107,830 (18,686,405,602) 3,672,492,758

41.6 Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: foreign exchange rates (currency risk), market interest rates (interest rate risk) and
market prices (price risk).

The Company’s market risk policy sets out the assessment and determination of what constitutes market risk for the Company.
Compliance with the policy is monitored and exposures and breaches are reported to the Company risk committee. The policy is
reviewed regularly for pertinence and for changes in the risk environment.

(i) Currency Risk
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates.

The Company'’s principal transactions are carried out in Nepali Rupees (NPR) and its exposure to foreign exchange risk arises
primarily with respect to Indian Rupees and the US dollar.

The Company'’s financial assets including reinsurance assets and liabilities are primarily denominated in the same currencies as
its insurance contract liabilities. This mitigates the foreign currency exchange rate risk for the overseas operations. Thus, the main
foreign exchange risk arises from recognized assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than those in which insurance
contract liabilities are expected to be settled.
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The Company’s asset denominated in foreign currency is a bank balance in US dollar amounting to USD 1887.44 Currency risk in
respect to Indian Rupees may arise for actuarial fee to be paid in Indian Rupees. There is no outstanding payable in Indian Rupees.
In view of immaterial amount, there is no significant concentration of currency risk.

(ii) Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates.

Floating rate instruments expose the Group to cash flow interest risk, whereas fixed interest rate instruments expose the Group to
fair value interest risk.

The Company'’s instruments except call accounts are fixed interest rate instruments. Interest on floating rate instruments is re-
priced at intervals of less than one year. Interest on fixed interest rate instruments is priced at inception of the financial instrument
and is fixed until maturity. The Company mitigates interest rate risks by diversifying portfolios to include a multitude of different
instruments that have varying maturation schedules.

The Company has no significant concentration of interest rate risk

(iii) Equity Price Risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in equity
prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the
individual financial instrument or its issuer, or by factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

The Company’s equity price risk exposure relates to financial assets whose values will fluctuate as a result of changes in market
prices, principally investment in securities.

The Group’s price risk policy requires it to manage such risks by setting and monitoring objectives and constraints on investments,
diversification plans, limits on investments in each sector and market.

The Company has no significant concentration of equity price risk.

The analysis below is performed for reasonably possible movements in market indices with all other variables held constant,
showing the impact on equity (that reflects changes in fair value of AFS financial assets). There are no financial assets and liabilities
whose fair values are recorded in the statement of profit or loss. Hence impact on profit before tax is not analyzed. The correlation
of variables will have a significant effect in determining the ultimate impact on price risk, but to demonstrate the impact due to
changes in variables, variables had to be changed on an individual basis. It should be noted that movements in these variables are
non-linear.

Impact on Equity

Market Indices Change in Variable
2074/75 2073/74
NEPSE +10% 2,461,377,636 2,855,371,629
NEPSE -10% 2,013,854,430 2,336,213,151

(IV) Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from system failure, human error, fraud or external events. When controls fail to perform,
operational risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory implications or can lead to financial loss. The Company
cannot expect to eliminate all operational risks, but by initiating a rigorous control framework and by monitoring and responding
to potential risks, the Company is able to manage the risks. Controls include effective segregation of duties, access controls,
authorization and reconciliation procedures, staff education and assessment processes, including the use of internal audit. Business
risks such as changes in environment, technology and the industry are monitored through the Company’s strategic planning and
budgeting process.
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42 Contingencies and Commitments

a. Legal proceedings and regulations

The Company operates in the insurance industry and is subject to legal proceedings in the normal course of business. While it is not
practicable to forecast or determine the final results of all pending or threatened legal proceedings, management does not believe
that such proceedings (including litigation) will have a material effect on its results and financial position.

The Company is also subject to insurance solvency regulations and has complied with all the solvency regulations. There are no
contingencies associated with the Company’s compliance or lack of compliance with such regulations.

b. Capital Commitments and Operating Leases
The Company has no capital commitments at the reporting date.

The Company has entered into commercial property leases on its property, plant and equipment portfolio, consisting of the
Company’s surplus office buildings. These non—-cancellable leases have remaining terms of between five and seven years. All leases
include a clause to enable upward revision of the rental charge on an annual basis according to prevailing market conditions

Future minimum lease rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases as at 16/07/2018 are, as follows:

2074/75 2073/74

Within 1 Year 17,850,552 8,414,922
1to 5 years 42,397,171 21,187,650
More than 5 years 31,115,698 2,314,615
Total rent receivable 63,363,391 31,917,187

43. Segment information

The company offers life insurance. Under life insurance the company offers savings, protection products and other long-term
contracts (both with and without insurance risk and with and without bonus. It comprises a wide range of whole life, term
assurance. Revenue is derived primarily from insurance premiums, fees and commission income, investment income and fair
value gains and losses on investments. For management purposes, the operating segment is organized into business units based
on their products and services and has five reportable operating segments, as follows:

Endowment:Thisisawith profitplanthatmakes provisionsforthefamily ofthe Life Assuredineventofhisearlydeathandalsoassures
alump sum at a desired age on maturity. It costs moderate premiums, has high liquidity and in savings oriented.This plan is apt for
people of allages and social groups who wish to protect their families from afinancial setback that may occur owing to their demise.

Anticipated: This scheme provides for specific periodic payments of partial survival benefits during the term of the policy itself
so long as the policy holder is alive. It is therefore suitable to meet specified financial requirements needed for occasions like
Brata bandha, Academic Graduations etc.An important feature of plan is that in the event of death at any time within the policy
term, the death claim comprises full sum assured without deducting any of the survival benefit amounts, which have already
been paid. It is also with profit plan.

Whole Life: This plan is a combination of Endowment Assurance and Whole Life with profit plan. It provides financial protection
against death throughout the lifetime of the life assured with the provision of payment of a lump sum at the maturity of the
policy to the assured in case of his survival.

Term: Term life insurance, also known as pure life insurance, is life insurance that guarantees payment of a stated death benefit
during a specified term. Once the term expires, the policyholder can either renew it for another term, convert the policy to
permanent coverage, or allow the policy to terminate.

Special: Special Term insurance is a modified version of term insurance with added benefits

Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or loss and is measured consistently with profit or loss in the consolidated
financial statements.
No inter-segment transactions occurred in 2073/74 and 2074/75

Profit or loss of each category for the year 2074/75. o3
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44. Related parties Disclosure

The Company identifies the following as the related parties under requirement NAS 24

Name Relationship

Mrs. Prema Rajya Laxmi Singh Chairperson

Mr. Kabiraj Adhikari, Director Key Managerial Personnel
Mr. Rajeev B. Shah,Director Key Managerial Personnel
Lt. Gen. Pawan Bdr. Pande, (Retd.) Director Key Managerial Personnel
Mrs. Bhawani Rana,Director Key Managerial Personnel
Mr. Maheshwor Prakash Shrestha, Director Key Managerial Personnel
Er. Mr. Kuldeep Sharan Singh, Director Key Managerial Personnel
Mr. Bharat Basnet,CEO Key Managerial Personnel

Details of CEQ’s Remuneration:

Basic Salary 35,93,000
Allowances 39,96,000
Total 75,89,000

He is entitled to Bonus, provident fund contributions, leave encashment etc. as per company rules.

44.1 Board Member Allowances and Facilities

The Board of Directors has been paid meeting fees of NPR 1,584,000 during the fiscal year. There were 24 Board Meetings
conducted during the fiscal year. Audit Committee and other committees were paid meeting allowances of NPR 260,000 during
the year.

45. Contingencies and Legal Proceedings

Income Tax

The company has a pending case with the Inland Revenue Department for an amount of NPR 50,40,398. The final verdict is still
pending from the court.

Claims and Litigation

A litigation for the construction of building of NPR 1,62,37,078 is still pending in court. The case is undergoing trial and is yet to
receive a verdict.

46. Bonus Rate to policy holders

Declared and Interim Bonus Rate to policy holder for one thousand Sum Assured per annum is as under:

Endowment and Whole Life

Tenure of Policy Endowment Policy Policy
1 5-14 Years 63 63
2 15-19 Years 63 63
3 20-25 Years 64 64
4 26 years and above 82 82

=1
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S.No  Tenure of Policy Money Back Policy
1 5-14 Years 62
2 15-19 Years 63
20 years and above 63

%

The company has charged interest on late premium payment and loans against insurance policies a per the following:

Interest Amount Received Amount Received

D Rate (Current Year) (Previous Year)
1 Late Premium Payment 10% 33,930,806 36,555,303
2 Loan Against Insurance Policies | 10% 237,681,504 159,110,895

47. Change of Estimates

Management has estimated the revised useful life of the assets and the effect of such revision on net carrying value of assets and
depreciation has been accounted prospectively resulting increase in depreciation charges for the year by NPR 7,434,969 with
corresponding decrease in assets value by NPR 7,434,9609.

Class of assets Previous depreciation / Revised Useful Life(in years)
amortization rate/useful life

Computer 25% 5

Furniture and Fixture 25% 10

Office Equipment 25% 5

Software 20% 5

Vehicle 20% 10

Leasehold 20% 5

Cycle 20% 10

Building 5% 40
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First Time Adoptation reconciliations and disclosures

NFRS 1 (First-time Adoption of Nepal Financials Reporting Standards) provides a suitable starting point for accounting in accordance
with NFRS and is required to be mandatorily followed by first-time adopters.

The Company has prepared the opening Statement of Financial Position as per NFRS as of 1st Shrawan, 2073 (16 July 2016) (the
transition date) by:

A. recognizing all assets and liabilities whose recognition is required by NFRS,

B. derecognizing items of assets or liabilities which are not permitted by NFRS,

C. reclassifying items from previous Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) to NFRS as required under NFRS, and
D. applying NFRS in measurement of recognized assets and liabilities.

Exceptions
As per NFRS 1 any change in accounting policy should be applied retrospectively, however it prohibits retrospective application of
some aspects of other NFRS. Some of the exceptions which are relevant to the entity are as follows:

Estimates:

An entity’s estimates in accordance with NFRSs at the date of transition to NFRSs shall be consistent with estimates made for the
same date in accordance with previous GAAP. The company does not have any such estimates made under NFRS which is different
than the local GAAP on date of transitions.

Classification and measurement of financial assets:

An entity shall assess whether a financial asset carried at amortized cost meets the conditions of NFRS 9 on the basis of the facts
and circumstances that exist at the date of transition to NFRSs. Accordingly, for investment carried at amortized cost as on date of
transition the business model test and cash flow test has been checked for the same date. As per the exception for retrospective
application classification based on the circumstance prevailing at initial recognition would be difficult and perhaps impossible.

Exemptions:
NFRS 1 has provided various optional exemptions from some requirement of other NFRS. Retrospective application of some of the
standard can require significant resources and could in some circumstances be impracticable.

Insurance Contract: First-time adopter may apply the transitional provisions in NFRS 4 Insurance Contracts. NFRS 4 restricts
changes in accounting policies for insurance contracts, including changes made by a first-time adopter. The company has been
already using Gross Premium Valuation for insurance contract liabilities in existing GAAP.

Deemed Cost:

The entity has not used fair value on date of transition as deemed cost. Rather, the carrying amount under previous GAAP of an
item of property, plant and equipment has been considered as deemed cost on date of transition. (IG7). There is no requirement for
componentization nor there was any major replacement which was not capitalized in previous year.

Significant changes from the policies adopted in the past:

Significant changes from the accounting policies adopted under previous GAAP (erstwhile Nepal Accounting Standards and
directives issued by Insurance Board of Nepal) and the adoption of NFRS has been disclosed in the respective segments, including
the impact. The detailed impact disclosure is given below.

9
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Reconciliation of Total Equity

Particulars Recon 2074-75 2073-74 2072-73
[\[e1 =R\ [oX

Total Equity under previous GAAP
NFRS Adjustments
Increase/Decrease in R/E

Decrease in investment income

Fair value gains and losses on
Investment Property

Increase in other operating income
Provision for loss on Investment
Provision written back

Decrease in administrative expenses
Increase in depreciation

Reversal of provision for loss on
investment expenses

Share of Profit of Associate
Deffered Tax

Net gain on available-for-sale financial
assets OCl

Profit Share from Investment in
Associate OCl

Actuarial Remeasurement gains on
defined benefit plan OCI

Deferred Tax OCI
Rent Equilization Reserve

OCl Fair Value Reserve

N O b

o]

1

12

13

2,297,135,459

(160,586)
35,006,810

21,023,440
10,933,732

(600,000)
(8,121,328)
(7,434,969)
17,613,646

24,890,654
(21,852,442)
(842,260,252)

(38,906,571)

(22,719,461)

210,565,063
(20,144,193)
1,633,985,676

2,187,746,474

(153,254)
19,675,659

11,977,850
10,933,732
(600,000)
(19,746,246)
0

6,997,938

12,510,254
(7,339,462)
(258,457,275)

(15,687,943)

(7,695,483)

64,614,319
(11,246,555)
1,633,985,676

1,797,419,694

11,849,117

10,933,732

(20,433,403)
0

2,444,258
(3,038,554)

1,633,985,676

90% of OCl Transferred to Fair value (846,598,010) (1,275,083,365) (1,470,587,108)
Reserve on Insurance Contract

Liabilities

Deferred Tax Reserve Fund (21,946) (21,946)

Cash Dividend 383,677,034 18,827,011 17,432,417
Total Equity under NFRS 2,826,011,754 2,371,237,385 1,980,005,828

N
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1. Under NFRS, the loan provided to employees have been discounted at an effective interest rate of 7.25% and as a result the
income from employee loans have increased causing a difference in the income from investments as per old GAAP and NFRS. The
interest income on Gratuity Fund was considered as investment income as per the previous GAAP but as per NFRS, they form the
part of return on plan assets.

| Particulars | 2074/75 | 2073/74 |

Income from Employee Loan as per GAAP 422,790 445,651
Income from Employee Loan as per NFRS 1,834,227 1,318,606
Difference 1,411,437 872,955
Income from Gratuity with CIT (1,418,769) (1,026,209)

(7,332) (153,254)

2. Complying with NAS 40, the gains or losses from fair valuation of investment property is recognized in the statement of profit or
loss. The details of the fair valuation of investment properties are as under:

| Particulars | 2074/75 Rs) | 2073/74Rs) | 2072/73 (Rs) |

Opening Value of Investment Property 575,827,669 497,562,248 379,071,076
Fair Value Gains/Losses 153,311,504 78,265,421 118,491,172
Total Investment Property 729,139,173 575,827,669 497,562,248

3. As per NFRS, the rent income has been equalized over the period of the lease. As per the GAP rent was booked at the current
period cost. As an effect of the equalization the rentincome has increased during the reporting period.

Particulars 2074/75 (Rs.) 2073/74 (Rs.)

Rent Equalization Income 9,045,590 11,977,850

4. As per previous GAAP, provision was made for an investment that was impaired and the same was recovered and hence the
provision was written back.

5. As per NFRS, the actuarial valuation of defined benefit obligations have been done and the expenses have been booked
accordingly. The rent expenses have also been equalized over the period of the lease as per NFRS. As per the GAP rent was booked
at the current period cost. As an effect of the equalization the rent income has increased during the reporting period. Under

NFRS, the loan provided to employees have been discounted at an effective interest rate of 7.25% and as a result the income from
employee loans have increased causing a difference in the income from investments as per old GAAP and NFRS. The impairment
expense has been booked for equity investments which have now been liquidated as per NFRS.

I =7 I P Y N N N

Particulars As per NFRS AS per GAAP Difference As per NFRS | AS per GAAP | Difference
Defined Benefit Obligations 27,131,739 40,689,148 (13,557,409) 18,438,199 20,737,949 (2,299,750)
Rent Equalization Expense 147,954 147,954 731,295 731,295
Effective Interest Expense 1,411,437 1,411,437 872,955 872,955
Impairment on Equity 373,100 373,100

Foreign Exchange Fluctuation 8,343 8,343
Total 29,064,230 40,689,148 (11,624,918) 20,042,449 20,737,949 (687,157)

6. The difference in depreciation is due to the change in the method of depreciation while preparing the financials as per NFRS.
In the previous GAAP Written down value method was used and in NFRS the straight line method is used as prescribed by the
standard.
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7. As per NFRS, the investment in equity instruments have been classified as Financial Investment at FVTOCI and hence they have
been presented in their fair value. As per the previous GAAP they were presented in their book value and necessary provisions
were made. As the provision is not required as per NFRS hence there is a difference.

Y

8.The company holds 50% stake in NLG Insurance Co. LTD. The same is presented as Investment in Associates as per NFRS and the
share of profit of the associate is also booked as per NFRS. The same was not required to be booked as per the previous GAAP. For
further details refer Note.11

9.The difference in the tax expense between the previous GAAP and NFRS is due to the difference in the Deferred Tax. The details
are as under:

Deferred Tax Asset as per previous GAAP 6,708,546 2,984,170
Deferred Tax Liability as per NFRS (7,804,433) (1,338,683)
Difference (14,512,979) (4,322,854)

10. The fair value gains/ losses on equity instruments have been booked in OCl as per the classification chosen. The same was not
considered in the previous GAAP. The details are as under:

Investment in shares 2,237,616,033 2,595,792,390  2,793,054,434
Book Value 901,228,717 675,602,097 614,406,866
Transfer to OCI 1,336,387,316  1,920,190,293  2,178,647,568
Amount to be booked (583,802,977) (258,457,275)  2,178,647,568

11.The company holds 50% stake in NLG Insurance Co. LTD. The same is presented as Investment in Associates as per NFRS and the
share of OCI of the associate is also booked as per NFRS. The same was not required to be booked as per the previous GAAP.

12. As per the requirement of NFRS, the liability of employee benefits have been measured through actuarial valuation. The
expense relating to the actuarial remeasurement has been booked in OCl which was not required as per the previous GAAP.

13.The deferred tax expense has been booked on fair value remeasurement of equity instruments, the profit on share of associate
and the actuarial remeasurements. The same was not required as per the previous GAAP.
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14. Under NFRS, in the financial year 2017-18, the method of depreciation has been changed from Written down value method
to straight line method while written down method value is still used in the previous GAAP.

2074/75

& Equipment
Depreciation as per GAAP 19,522,012 466,141
Depreciation as per NFRS 26,913,291 509,831
Difference 7,391,279 43,690

15. Complying with NAS 40, the gains or losses from fair valuation of investment property is recognized in the statement of
profit or loss. The details of the fair valuation of investment properties are as under:

Particulars 2074/75 (Rs.) 2073/74 (Rs.) | 2072/73 (Rs.)
Opening Value of Investment Property 575,827,669 497,562,248 379,071,076
Fair Value Gains/Losses 153,311,504 78,265,421 118,491,172
Total Investment Property 729,139,173 575,827,669 497,562,248

16. As per NFRS, the investment in equity and mutual funds have been classified as Financial investment at FVTOCI and hence
have been presented at fair value but the same has been presented at book value in the previous GAAP.

Investment as per GAAP 998,953,857 748,327,237 678,344,696
Investment as per NFRS  2,335,341,173 2,668,517,530 2,856,992,264
1,336,387,316  1,920,190,293 2,178,647,568

17. As per NFRS, the loan to employees have been calculated by discounting the loans at an effective interest rate of 7.25%. In
the previous GAAP the discounting was not done.

] e mana T —

Loan to employees as per GAAP 49,302,434 26,005,940 25,706,997
Loan to employees as per NFRS 32,760,903 23,109,251 22,857,626
(16,541,531) (2,896,689) (2,849,371)

18. As per NFRS, the dividends are booked at the date they are declared and approved by the AGM. In the previous GAAP, the
same was considered as an adjusting event occurring after balance sheet date and capitalized in next years balance sheet.

19. As per circular dated 2075/09/12 of Beema samiti, 90% of the surplus arising from OCI must be transferred to Fair Value
Reserve within the Insurance Contract Liabilities. The company has transferred the amounts as under to the fair value reserve.
The same was not required as per the previous GAAP.

Transfer to Fair Value Reserve (428,485,355) (195,503,744) 1,470,587,108
Cumulative 846,598,010 1,275,083,365 1,470,587,108
20.The exchange gain is booked as per NFRS, the same was not booked as per the previous GAAP.

21. As per NFRS, the actuarial valuation of defined benefit obligations have been done and the expenses and the liability have
been booked accordingly. In the previous GAAP the actuarial valuation of defined benefit obligations were not mandatory. The
details are as under:

AL
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As per GAAP 58,092,425 39,115,311 24,057,433
As per NFRS 87,833,209 65,970,757 44,490,836
Total 29,740,784 26,855,446 20,433,403

22.There is a difference in the differed tax as per NFRS and as per previous GAAP. The details of the difference are as under:

T s s e | 2ot | 2omm|
DTA as per GAAP (16,714,727) (10,006,179) (7,022,009)
DTL as per NFRS 339,256,490 477,402,802 540,678,437
Total 355,971,217 487,408,981 547,700,446

23.The provision for cash dividend and provision for loss in investment is not required as per NFRS but the same has been
provided for in the previous GAAP. Details are as under:

(Rs.)

Provision for Cash Dividend 18,827,011 18,827,011 17,432,417
Provision for Loss on 27,574,374 17,331,768 10,933,732
Investment

Total 46,401,384 36,158,778 28,366,149

&
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